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CONTACT INFORMATION: 
 
 
Office Address:     Telephone:     Email 
3 Baron-Hay Court         
SOUTH PERTH  WA  6151   +61 (08) 9423 0500    pmc@pmc.wa.gov.au  
 
 
Postal Address:     Fax:      Website: 
Bin 40, 3 Baron-Hay Court           
SOUTH PERTH  WA  6151   +61 (08) 9423 0566    www.pmc.wa.gov.au  
 



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2014/2015 
3 

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

 

 
The Hon Ken Baston MLC 
Minister for Agriculture and Food; Fisheries 
7th Floor, Dumas House 
2 Havelock Street 
West Perth  WA  6005 
 
In accordance with Section 63 of the Financial Management Act 2006, we hereby submit for 
your information and presentation to Parliament, the Annual Report of the Potato Marketing 
Corporation of Western Australia for the financial year ended 30 June 2015. 
 
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Financial 
Management Act 2006, Treasurer’s Instructions and all relevant accounting standards. 
 
 

  
 Ron Edwards, Chairman    

 
 

  
 

       Darryl Smith, Board Member  
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A full copy of this document is available online in both word and pdf 

format from the Potato Marketing Corporation of WA website at  

www.pmc.wa.gov.au. 

 

 

Previous years’ annual reports can also be found on the website.  

 

 

The PDF version is an interactive document which contains links 

enabling easy navigation to different sections of the report.  

 

 

This document is available in alternative formats upon request.  

 

 

Copying of this document, in whole or in part, for non -commercial 

purposes is permitted provided that the Potato Marketing Corporation of 

WA receives the appropriately required acknowledgement and 

recognition. All other copying of this document is not permitted without 

the Corporation’s written consent.     
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Report framework 
 
This annual report presents an analysis of the Potato Marketing Corporation of WA’s performance and operations for the financial year ended 
30 June 2015 under the following four key categories:  
 

 Overview    
 A summary of what the Corporation does, its responsibilities, the organisational structure and key performance outcomes. 
 
 Agency performance 
 Highlighting the operational achievements for the period of 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 and providing a comparison with  
    the desired outcomes.  
 
 Significant issues impacting the agency 
 Addressing current and emerging issues which have the potential to impact on our operational achievement  and performance    
    targets. 
 
 Disclosures and legal compliance 
 Providing an analysis of audited financial statements, key performance indicators, outcomes and detailed financial disclosure.  
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Overview 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Section 1 - Overview 

1.1 Executive Summary 

Key Statistics 

Key statistics for 2014-15 include: 

 Decrease of 2,982 tonnes in Domestic Market Entitlement (DME) allocations to growers to 55,573 tonnes (down 5.1%). 

 Decrease of 481 tonnes in deliveries by growers to 54,190 tonnes (down 0.9%). 

 Decrease of 1,570 tonnes in imports (from the eastern states) to 51 tonnes (down 96.9%). 

 Decrease of $7.81 tonne in Corporation services costs to $82.41 tonne (down 8.6%). 

Summary Overview 

Overall the 2014-15 Season was challenging from a number of perspectives including weather causing quality issues, and a   

substantial oversupply, largely by one grower, negatively influencing returns and distorting markets. Additional challenges for 

growers were presented by the increasing move to yellow fleshed varieties, which require different agronomic packages and   

involve a steep initial grower learning curve. However, these varieties represent the future of the industry as they are the key   

varieties demanded by the major national supermarket chains. 
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Unfortunately, during winter key growing areas suffered frost events at key points in the growing cycle that negatively         

impacted on quality. In addition, the hot weather during the January to March period played a role in causing significant      

internal issues in key varieties such as Royal Blue, which led to the deranging of the variety in Coles during this period.  In 

addition, the heat during this period also resulted in poor emergence of seed planted for winter delivery. As a result of the 

quality issues associated with the Royal Blue internals, the CEO established a “Royal Blue Task Force” to investigate the   

issue   consisting of Dr Kevin Clayton-Greene from Harvest Moon, Dr Steve Milroy from Potato Research WA, DAFWA, Ms 

Deb Archdeacon from Agronomica, a representative from Coles, Professor Mike Jones from Murdoch University and the PMC 

Quality Team. Although there is likely not a quick fix for the issue, the Task Force has developed a plan of action to          

ameliorate the problem during the hot summer months that includes cool store trials, as well as agronomic work.  

 

 

 

 

 

The significant oversupply during this growing year was overwhelmingly the result of the actions of one large integrated  

grower.  This oversupply had the effect of significantly impacting Pool returns, especially in relation to Pools 2 and 3. Several 

attempts have been made to resolve this issue with the grower, but without success such that legal action is pending. 

As a result of this overplant, the CEO introduced risk based compliance protocols, which focus the PMC compliance effort  

into those areas of greatest risk of the operation of the regulated system. The focus is to improve the earlier detection and 

identification of any potential overplants, as well as monitor the operation of washpackers to ensure adherence to the Act. In 

addition, the PMC Team achieved an outstanding result in identifying new markets to move the increased volume of potatoes, 

with some 900 tonnes being exported to the Eastern States.  

 

Overview 
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It is clear that the major national supermarket chains in WA are seeking yellow flesh potatoes at the expense of whites,      

especially Nadines. As noted in last year’s Annual Report, an increase in yellow varieties over coming seasons means that 

overall average quality figures may not show improvement, as growers optimise the agronomic packages to grow the new  

varieties. During the 2014-15 growing year, the PMC increased the percentage of yellow flesh tonnage by approximately 46 

per cent year on year, and envisages further increases in the future.   

Once again, for many growers that did not show an overall quality improvement this year, weather played a significant role in 

their quality result.  Notwithstanding this, there remains significant room for improvement with many growers. The Corporation 

continues to conduct benchmarking interviews with growers to assist in this quality improvement process.  The lack of quality 

product, particularly coloured varieties at key times of the year and especially in summer, represent a significant lost market 

opportunity.   

As noted last year, a combined effort from all growers is required to take advantage of this lost market opportunity, and to   

enable the industry to grow and compete successfully.  The quality, agronomical support and research initiatives that are    

being driven by the PMC and offered to all growers will result in sustainable improvements in the medium to long-term. 

 

 

Implementation of the McKinna recommendations continued, with all having now been completed or underway. This has been 

a major and very challenging task over the course of the last three years, especially due to the restrictions on what has been 

possible given limitations of the Act, and the outsourcing of key functions such as washpacking to Agents. Nevertheless,    

significant changes have been made and these will provide substantial benefits into the future. 

The PMC’s marketing program continues to deliver excellent results across key areas including market information, campaign 

delivery, the Sales and Operations Planning process and promotion. Our Fresh Potatoes category marketing campaign was 

again a Finalist in PMA’s Australia New Zealand Marketer of the Year awards. The campaign has attracted interest and     

collaboration from New Zealand, South Africa, United Kingdom and the United States. The recognition is for good reason.  

Our campaign is being held up as an example of how to arrest declining consumption in developed countries. Independent 

research shows that we have maintained average household purchase habits and above average national purchase          

volumes.  

Overview 

Key Initiatives Continue 
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Mass awareness within our target market has now been achieved, with 94% of our core consumers being exposed to the 

campaign more than 36 times.  A thriving social media community operates with above average engagement rates and point 

of sale activities have taken the campaign in store across the independent grocery retail trade. Our Seed for Schools program 

now has over 450 participants and our kids focused Royal Show activity reaches 20,000 of the next generation of potato   

consumers.  We continue to market heavily to the foodservice community and boast over 10 leading chefs as our industry’s 

potato ambassadors. 

The PMC is continuing its emphasis on quality and varieties with the adoption by the Board of an integrated Variety            

Development and Commercialisation Strategy to guide the introduction of emerging varieties, which includes the introduction 

of an incentive program and establishment of a grower reference group. As part of its quality program, the PMC funded a  

successful grower trip to Tasmania in July 2014 that enabled WA growers to identify practices from another key growing area.  

This information was disseminated across the grower base via reports and meetings.   

A key element of the PMC’s push into additional value adding activities was its agreement with Zerella Fresh, which provided 

the PMC with the exclusive rights to produce and market the Maranca variety of potatoes in Western Australia. The PMC is 

also pursuing discussions with other variety rights holders to combat closed loops, provide access to all quality growers and 

deliver new varieties for consumers. 

Finally, over the course of the year, five new growers were licenced by the Corporation in areas that included Myalup, Gin 

Gin, Waroona and Cookernup. These growers all came with substantial experience either directly in potatoes or in other     

areas of horticulture. 

Overview 
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1.2 Chairman’s Report 

 

The 2014-2015 reporting year has been a period of challenge and change for the Potato Marketing Corporation. The State 

Government announced that it planned to deregulate the production and supply of ware potatoes in Western Australia by 2017. 

This announcement, giving a two year period for adjustment, provides an opportunity for the industry, the PMC and the Potato 

Growers Association to develop plans for an orderly transition to a more open market on the production and supply sides of the 

industry. 

The lead up to the announcement by Government was not surprising given the views of the Economic Regulation Authority  

towards deregulation. The PMC, supported by the work of ACIL Allen demonstrated a case for retention of the regulated     

system. The ACIL Allen report was well received and praised for its objectivity. The report clearly demonstrated that the     

overall cost of the PMC was insignificant in State terms. Most importantly, the report illustrated that consumers were not       

adversely affected by the operation of the regulated system. 

Within the policy environment the wider discussions towards deregulation were significant with the State Government also 

coming under pressure from the Commonwealth to demonstrate economic reforms in the areas of the taxi industry and the   

potato industry as part of the Commonwealth-State Fiscal Relationships. Whilst the majority of the industry, on the supply side, 

favour the retention of the regulated system there has been some agitation by parts of the industry to deregulate. 

This move towards deregulation poses a significant challenge for growers as their business arrangements have been formed 

within a more predictive environment. Uncertainty over the future can to some extent be ameliorated through an open and 

transparent transition process involving the PMC  working with the PGA, washpackers and Government. This is the intention of 

the PMC Board and staff and the PGA. 

The Board of the PMC has established a task force to work towards the deregulation of the industry. The task force will work 

with external consultants and the PGA to develop an industry wide approach to the future structure of the industry. 

Overview 
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The PMC Board has also held discussions with the Australian Competition and Consumer Commission to address issues related 

to deregulation, including experiences in other industries. 

The CEO Peter Evans along with the executive team developed a strategic framework and plan for the industry to assist the 

transition towards a deregulated environment. This framework has been valuable as the PMC along with the PGA engages with 

consultants to model and plan for the future. The Board has also established a taskforce that will be the key contact group for 

planning the transition to the deregulated environment. 

The marketing consumption campaign continues to focus on increasing consumer consumption and growing market share. This 

campaign will provide an ongoing coordinated marketing approach which provides a level of confidence in the future of the      

industry for all participants. Consumer research suggests the campaign has had an impact with the WA statistics demonstrating 

levels of potato sales at trends above the national average. Interestingly, the marketing campaign has also succeeded in         

establishing important price points for varieties such as Royal Blue.  

Analysis of marketing trends reveals capacity for gaining value within the premium end of the market as well as an interest by 

retailers in developing product lines for sale. 

The marketing campaign has also developed the use of social media and partnerships with other food suppliers to increase its 

level of effectiveness and reach, whilst also attempting to increase its healthy lifestyle focus. New recipes continue to be         

generated emphasising the ease of preparing potatoes as part of an increased consumption campaign. The marketing campaign 

has attracted interest from other categories and potato producers elsewhere. It is important to observe that the marketing     

campaign has positioned the industry within the vegetable categories and delivered to the industry an ability to negotiate with   

supermarkets on promotion strategies. 

Overview 

Potato Research WA act as the leading research provider on quality improvement projects for the WA potato industry 
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R Edwards   

Chairman 

In the broader policy context this is an exciting time for primary producers with the release of the Commonwealth Governments 

Agricultural Competitiveness White Paper which includes $11.4 million for the ACCC to improve engagement with the agricultural 

sector and $13.8 million to fund innovative business models. This fits with the WA Government’s commitment to boost agriculture 

as a productive sector in WA. 

Potato Research WA is now well established and continues its work on potato quality, variety, yield and disease that provides a 

key impetus to assist quality improvement for WA growers. Potato Research WA has identified to assist quality improvement for 

WA growers. Potato Research WA has identified agronomic and grower production issues that are being analysed and            

addressed. This centre is also establishing state, national and international relationships that will provide important linkages for 

the future.  

The PMC has negotiated new arrangements with suppliers of quality seed and approved the establishment of grower trials in 

new areas. It is considered that new growing areas will enhance climate resilience and profitability for industry. 

The PMC Board changed in composition in April 2015. The PMC farewelled the former Chairman, Bert Russell, and Directors 

Annemie McAuliffe and Leslie Chalmers. They have served the Government, the industry and the community well over many 

years with dedicated and diligent service. In the case of Mr Russell, he held the position of Chair for eight years and the PMC 

benefited from his extensive knowledge of the industry and the Act. 

The new Directors, Sophie Dwyer, Basil Lenzo and Paul McKenzie, joined the existing grower Directors, Greg Starkie and Darryl 

Smith, to complete the Board transition. The new Directors bring extensive knowledge of the primary industry and business     

sectors to the PMC Board.  

Overview 
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Enabling Legislation 

Responsible Minister 

1.3 Operational Structure 

The Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia was established under the Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946.  The Act and 

Regulations set out the functions of the Corporation and the framework within which it is to operate. 

The Corporation reports to the Hon Ken Baston MLC, Minister for Agriculture and Food; Fisheries. 

Section 20(a) of the Act gives the Minister the power to direct the Corporation in writing concerning the performance of its        

functions, either generally or with respect to a particular matter. 

Under Section 19(a) of the Act, a person aggrieved by a decision made by the Corporation in exercising its powers may apply to 

the State Administrative Tribunal for a review of the decision. 

Overview 
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Functions of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia 

The functions of the Corporation are defined in Section 17(a) of the Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946, being to: 

 Regulate the production of ware potatoes so as to ensure the supply of the quantities, kinds and qualities preferred by       

consumers in the State. 

 Take delivery of, and otherwise deal with, potatoes in accordance with this Act and market potatoes in the State and         

elsewhere.  

 Register persons who are to be authorised to carry on business as a commercial producer of potatoes and license the areas 

of land to be used in any such business. 

 Encourage and promote the use of potatoes and provide for the monitoring and, if thought fit, regulation of the production of 

potatoes for propagation or for any other prescribed kind of use. 

 Foster methods of production and adopt methods of marketing that will enable potatoes grown in the State to compete in 

price and quality against potatoes from alternative sources of supply. 

 Promote, encourage, fund and arrange for the conduct of research into matters relating to the production and marketing of 

potatoes and undertake market development. 

Overview 
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Under the Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946, the Potato Marketing         

Corporation of Western Australia has the remit to efficiently and            

effectively manage the WA ware potato supply chain.  

The Operations division of the PMC is responsible for the supply, quality, 

compliance, implementation and administration of the licensing protocols 

established under the Marketing of Potatoes Act.  

To achieve this, the Corporation aims at supply chain optimisation, which 

is ensuring supply matches consumer demand in terms of quality,     

quantity and varieties of fresh ware potatoes all year round.  

MISSION STATEMENT 

To provide leadership for the WA ware potato industry in meeting    

consumer demand via cost effective supply chain optimisation, category 

marketing and development and innovation. 

Overview 
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Organisational Chart 

Overview 
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1.4 The Board of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia 

The Board consists of a Chairman and members who have relevant commercial expertise in potato growing, finance, marketing 

or the food industry.  

  

The Board is responsible to the Minister for Agriculture and Food, who appoints the Chairman and members, of whom two are 

elected by commercial potato producers under the Electoral Act 1907.   

  

The Chairman may hold office for up to five years and members for up to three years and are eligible to be re-appointed.  A 

member of the Board whose term of office expires shall, unless the office becomes vacant under section 13, continue in office 

until a successor comes into office (Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946, section 12(2)).   

  

Upon commencement of their term, Board members are given an Induction Manual that outlines the role and responsibilities of 

the Board.  When appointed to the Board, members undertake a solemn obligation to carry out their duties in a fair, open, honest 

and accountable way to the benefit of the Corporation and the community they serve. 

Overview 
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In carrying out its role, the Board is subject to the provisions of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996 which 

requires members to act honestly, exercise reasonable care and diligence and not make improper use of information or its position.           

 

Overview 

 

The primary role of the Board is to: 

Set performance goals and risk agenda 

Ensure corporate compliance and management accountability 

Set strategic directions and endorse strategic plans 

Approve operating budgets 

Ensure that the Corporation has the resources necessary to achieve goals,    

monitor progress and report on outcomes  
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Board Profiles 

Dr Ronald (Ron) Edwards (Chairman) 

Dr Edwards was appointed to the Board in June 2013.   Dr Edwards  holds a Bachelor of Economics from the University of     
Western Australia, a Master of Education with honours from the University of Sydney and a Doctor of Education from the            
University of Western Australia.  

Dr Edwards brings experience from working with primary and resource based industries and ministerial offices from his recent role 
of Chair of the Rock Lobster Industry Advisory Committee and his current professional appointments as a Board member at    
Goldcorp (incorporating the Perth Mint), Council member for the Anglican Schools Commission and founding Board Member of the 
Graham (Polly) Farmer Foundation.  Dr Edwards is also a business consultant providing a range of consultancy                          
services. 

Dr Edwards’ term expires in May 2018. 

Ms Sophie Dwyer 

Ms Dwyer was appointed to the Board in May 2015. Ms Dwyer holds a Bachelor of Science (Horticulture) with Honours from The 
University of Western Australia and a Master of Business Administration from Curtin University and has completed the Company 
Directors course with the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 

Ms Dwyer is a management consultant specialising in horticultural supply chains within WA. She currently consults through her 
business, Agrilinks, and as Senior Manager with The Advisory Panel providing industry development services and strategic       
planning and analysis services with the Department of Agriculture and Food.  

Ms Dwyer’s term expires in May 2018. 

Mr Darryl Smith 

Mr Smith was elected to the Board in September 2007 and has been growing potatoes for over thirty years. Mr Smith is a past 
member of the APC Potato Producers’ Committee. He is also a former President of the Potato Growers Association of Western 
Australia. 

Mr Smith’s term expires in September 2016. 

Overview 
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Overview 

Mr Greg Starkie 

Mr Starkie was elected to the Board in October 2006 and has been growing potatoes for over fifty years.  His family has a long    
history in the industry. 

Mr Starkie’s term expires in September 2015. 

Mr Paul McKenzie 

Mr McKenzie was appointed to the Board in May 2015. Mr McKenzie holds a Bachelor of Science (Agriculture) from The University 
of Western Australia, a Bachelor of Commerce from Murdoch University, and is a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company  
Directors.  

Mr McKenzie is a professional agribusiness consultant and Company Director. He is the founder of Agrarian Management, Chair 
of Kangaroo Island Plantation Timbers Ltd (ASX:  KPT), Member of the Ministerial Agricultural Advisory Council and Director of the 
Rural Financial Counselling Service of WA.  Mr McKenzie is a Past President of the Australian Association of Agricultural         
Consultants (WA) Inc., and formerly Chair of Gage Roads Brewing Co Ltd (ASX: GRB). 

Mr McKenzie’s term expires in May 2018. 

Mr Basil Lenzo 

Mr Lenzo was appointed to the Board in May 2015. Mr Lenzo holds a Master in Business Administration from The University of 
Western Australia and is a graduate of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 

Mr Lenzo is a Managing Director of a family business, Lenzo Fishing Co. Pty. Ltd., with diversified interests in lobster fishing boats, 
importation, wholesale and distribution of food and beverages and retail shoes. He holds two other current directorships,            
non-executive Director of Geraldton Fishermen’s Co-operative and a Director of the Western Rock Lobster Council.  

Mr Lenzo’s term expires in May 2018. 
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Board Meeting Attendance and Fees 

Fees for Board members are determined by the Department of Premier and Cabinet and paid monthly.  Board members are  

reimbursed if travel, accommodation, telephone and motor vehicle expenses are incurred while on official business.   

Board member attendance to these meetings was as follows: 

Overview 

Changes to the Board: 

(a) Ms Sophie Dwyer was appointed to the Board in May 2015 replacing Ms Leslie Chalmers 

(b) Mr Basil Lenzo was appointed to the Board in May 2015 replacing Ms Annemie McAuliffe 

(c) Mr Paul McKenzie was appointed to the Board in May 2015 replacing Mr Bert Russell 

A total of 13 Board meetings were held during the past year.  

 
Meetings attended while in Office 

(2014/2015) 
Meetings attended while in Office 

(2013/2014) 
Fees Paid  

($) 

Mr Bert Russell 13 13 $33,837 

Dr Ron Edwards 11 12 $17,365 

Mr Darryl Smith 14 13 $24,979 

Mr Greg Starkie 12 9 $25,565 

Ms Annemie McAuliffe 9 13 $14,655 

Ms Leslie Chalmers 9 11 $9,326 

Ms Sophie Dwyer 2 0(a) $1,332 

Mr Basil Lenzo 2 0(b) $1,332 

Mr Paul McKenzie 0 0(c) $1,332 
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Senior Officers 

Chief Executive Officer 
 
Peter Evans joined the PMC as Acting Chief Executive Officer in June 2012. Peter has a diverse range of management experience 
in the public sector, the Australian Defence Force, academe and the private sector. He is a Member of the Australian Institute of 
Management and the Australian Institute of Company Directors. 
 
Peter is a graduate of The University of Western Australia holding a Bachelor of Arts (Economics) degree and has undertaken       
Post-Graduate studies in Business Administration. 
 
Peter was officially appointed as Chief Executive Officer in August 2013. 

Chief Financial Officer 
 
Stan Boczar joined the PMC in January 2014 as Chief Financial Officer. Stan has over 20 years of experience in the Manufacturing 
and Aviation industries with large organisations such as Amcor and Qantas in a variety of senior Commercial and Financial        
managerial roles. 
 
Stan holds a Bachelor of Accountancy from the Royal Melbourne Institute of Technology and is a fully qualified CPA. 

 

Overview 
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Other Key Legislation Impacting on the Corporation’s Activities 

In the performance of its functions, the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia complies with the following relevant 

legislation: 

Auditor General Act 2006 
A New Tax System (Goods and Services 
Tax) Act 1999 

Debits Tax Act 1990 

Disability Services Act 1993 Electoral Act 1907 Equal Opportunity Act 1984 

Financial Management Act 2006 Financial Institutions Duty Act 1993 Freedom of Information Act 1992 

Fringe Benefits Assessment Act 1986  Government Employees Superannuation 
Act 1987 

Industrial Relations Act 1979 

Industrial Relations Reform Act 1993 
Library Board of Western Australia Act 
1951 

Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 
1993  

Occupational Health and Safety Welfare 
Act 1984 

Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 Public Sector Management Act 1994 

Sales Tax Assessment Act 1992 State Records Act 2000 
Statutory Corporations (Liability of       
Directors) Act 1996 

Trade Practices Act 1974 
Workers’ Compensation and Assistance 
Act 1981 

Fair Work Act 2009 

Overview 
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In the financial administration of the Corporation, we have complied with the requirements of the Financial Management Act 

2006 and every other relevant written law, and exercised controls which provide reasonable assurance that the receipt and   

expenditure of moneys, the acquisition and disposal of public property and incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 

legislative provisions. 

At the date of signing we were not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars in this statement misleading 

or inaccurate.  

Ron Edwards  
Chairman 
 
Date: 11 September 2015  

Stan Boczar  
Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date: 11 September 2015 

Overview 
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Government Goal – Financial and Economic Responsibility 

Responsibly managing the State’s finances through the efficient and effective delivery of services, encouraging 
economic activity and reducing regulatory burdens on the private sector. 
The Corporation’s primary service aligns closely with this Government goal. 

Primary service provided by the Corporation:  Effective regulation of ware potato production and supply in Western 
Australia for the benefit of the public. 

 The Corporation receives no capital or recurrent Government funding. 

 Growers are assured of fair payment for all deliveries of ware potatoes. 

 The Corporation does not regulate the supply of potatoes for seed, processing and export. 

1.5 Performance Management Framework 

 

Government Goal – Outcomes Based Service Delivery 

Greater focus on achieving results in key service delivery areas for the benefit of all Western Australians. 
The Corporation’s primary outcome aligns closely with this Government goal. 

Primary outcome of the Corporation: The quantity and variety of quality freshly harvested ware potatoes supplied 
meets the demand of the State’s consumers for 12 months of the year.  

Government Goal – Results-based Service Delivery 

Greater focus on achieving results in key service delivery areas for the benefit of all Western Australians. 
The Corporation’s primary service aligns closely with this Government goal. 

Primary service provided by the Corporation:  Effective regulation of ware potato production and supply in Western 
Australia for the benefit of the public. 

Overview 
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Government Goal – Stronger Focus on the Regions 

Greater focus on service delivery, infrastructure investment and economic development to improve the overall 
quality of life in remote and regional areas.  
The Corporation’s primary service aligns closely with this Government goal. 

Primary service provided by the Corporation:   

 A high proportion of grower payments is spent in regional economies on production inputs, farm labour and transport 
services. 

 The Corporation is strongly committed to diversifying supply to new areas, such as Dandaragan/Gingin/Lancelin. 

 

Government Goal – Social and Environmental Responsibility 

Ensuring that economic activity is managed in a socially and environmentally responsible manner for the     
long-term benefit of the State. 
The Corporation’s primary service aligns closely with this Government goal. 

Primary service provided by the Corporation:   
 Supply management of potatoes for the domestic market helps to eliminate overproduction, hence avoiding the 

wastage of inputs (fertilisers, chemicals, energy and water for irrigation) and harmful environment impacts. 
 The Corporation is strongly committed to the sustainable development of the potato industry. 

Changes to Outcome Based Management Framework 

The Corporation’s Outcome Based Management Framework did not change during 2014/2015. 

Shared Responsibilities with Other Agencies 

The Corporation did not share any responsibilities with other agencies in 2014/2015. 

Overview 
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Agency Performance  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Section 2 - Agency Performance 

2.1 Overall Performance 

The 2014/15 year proved again challenging for the industry with weather conditions and a highly competitive market impacting 
quality, production and sales volumes.  

The Operations team continued its focus on Quality and Supply. Pack out accuracy was once again a concentrated focus, with 
a significant level of detailed analysis on selected consignments from growers. Weather events continued to impact  production 
volumes particularly in Pools 3 and 4, with skin finish, internals and consistency in sizing all contributing to a decline in         
year-on-year quality performance. 

A market surplus impacted Pool revenues through increased market pricing competition, particularly in Pools 2 and 3. This   
surplus forced a significant increase in volumes that were delivered to non-DME markets to ensure some pool revenue         
recovery was achieved. This excess supply position required extensive negotiation with processor and other market channels 
to commit to taking additional volumes, thus further minimising and limiting the excess supply impact on Pool and grower      
returns. 

The Corporation is funded by growers (no funding is provided by the Government for recurrent or capital expenditure) and 
operates on a profit neutral basis 
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Ongoing import compliance requirements (Potato Cyst Nematode testing) continues to keep       

import levels low, with the PMC focusing on improving local capability, quality and supply  reliability 

as part of its import replacement strategy. Under the PMC’s Quality Improvement Plan  PMC staff 

review outcomes and continue to hold detailed discussions on Pool performance with growers    

delivering sub-optimal Pool performances. 

The Sales and Operations Planning process has evolved its engagement and communication with 

critical stakeholders. This process has assisted in improving the accuracy of the supply planning 

process, including support for transitioning to non-white flesh and other developmental  potato    

varieties. 

 

Agency Performance  
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2.2 Financial Targets 

Agency Performance  

  
Target 

(1)
 Actual 

(2)
 Variance Variance (%) 

Domestic Sales (Tonnes) 55,573 54,190 -1,383 -2.5% 

Sales Revenue ($) 36,053,828 32,485,476 -3,568,352 -9.9% 

Corporations Services Costs ($) 4,982,659 4,465,579 517,080 10.4% 

Cost of Sales ($) 31,311,119 28,595,314 2,715,805 8.7% 

(1) As specified in Budget Statement for 2014-15. 
(2) Actual results from the 2014-15 Financial Statements and Notes to the Financial Statements. 
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2.3 Summary of Key Performance Indicators 

Additional information on KPIs is provided in Section 4 of this report. 

Agency Performance  

1.  Effectiveness 2014-15 Target 2014-15 Actual Variation 
Explanatory 

Note 

1.1  The extent to which the Corporation aligned domestic       

       production levels with local (ware market) demand. 100% 99.9% -0.1% A 

1.2  The extent to which the Corporation provides varieties             

       to the domestic market. 
 

35 32 -3 B 

Explanatory Notes: 

A. The Authority aims to align domestic production within +/- 5% of the local market demand. This indicator allows the Authority to ascertain the             

effectiveness of its supply management. 

Import restrictions into the WA market for the whole year assisted in DME production and in supply chain placement. Pools 2  and 3 were impacted by a 

market surplus which impacted market pricing and the ability of the authority merchants to successfully market and deliver WA potatoes throughout the 

supply chain. Some WA grown volumes were delivered to the East Coast as part of this surplus opportunity which enabled the authority to obtain a   

minimum recovery for growers as opposed to dumping them at nil return. 

B. Through its supply management the Authority provides a range of varieties to the domestic market. The target is to provide the same or more as the 

prior year.  

As potato varieties are seasonal the data provided shows the number of different varieties available each season and the total different varieties       

commercially available within the year. The number shown above reflects sales to wholesale merchants for the domestic ware market, however, the  

varieties are not always individually labelled at the retail level. 

Consumer feedback has indicated that varieties produced in limited quantities are not being recognised or made available at the point of sale. The     

authority realises retailers need to receive adequate quantity and quality throughout the year. 
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Explanatory Notes: 

C.  The Authority’s services costs are reported as actual dollars per delivered tonne to more accurately reflect the administration costs to run the Authority. 

2015 experienced a slow down in volume growth which required cost control over all areas of spend to ensure growers returns were not adversely      

impacted. All areas of spend have been tightly managed without any delay or impact on maintaining an appropriate level of value-adding service to 

stakeholders and the supply chain. 

D.  The Authority aims to make all 1st payments to growers within 14 days of delivery. This indicator is a measure of the Authority’s responsiveness to the 

growers.  

Surplus market volumes throughout Pools 2 to 4 impacted the cycle and completion of merchant packouts. Higher merchant discounting levels were 

used as the main lever to stimulate the lag in retail demand. This higher level of discounting focus required continuous pool performance monitoring and       

analysis and created a subsequent delay in finalising grower payments. The competitive market was a catalyst for some merchant supply and payment 

delays which also impacted the timing of scheduled grower payments. Throughout the year a continual cash focus was in place to deliver the appropriate 

balance between grower payments and merchant collections without any undue liquidity issues. 

2.  Efficiency 2014-15 Target 2014-15 Actual Variation 
Explanatory 

Note 

2.1  Corporation services costs 
(1)

 per tonne of production. 

 
$89.66 $82.41 $7.25 C 

2.2  Maintaining 1st payments to growers within  

       acceptable credit terms.                
 

14.0 days 15.9 days -1.9 days D 

(1) “Services Costs” is defined as all administrative and operational overheads incurred in regulating the supply of potatoes in the State and administering the Act. 

Agency Performance  
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2.4 Report on Operations 

Highlights 

Over the past year underlying production was 54,190T a slight decline of 0.9% from the previous season. 

Surplus volumes impacted the market with the PMC continuing its effort to maximise the sale of product through all available local 

and interstate sales channels. The PMC has established new channels for potatoes to be exported to the East Coast and is    

constantly searching for additional sales for value adding products. Even with the addition of these new market channels stock 

written off at nil value to all Pools was higher in 2014/15 than in the previous year. 

PMC is continually implementing a compliance protocol with Agents with ongoing random auditing of running sheets, designated 

consignments, monitoring stocks, checking chlorine levels, general inspection activities and ensuring grading standards are met at 

the packout and final to retail level. 

In conjunction with Regional Grower Groups, the PMC facilitates agronomic activities with industry experts to assist growers 

to establish best agricultural practices relating to crop management, soil health and  water management. The PMC actively 

seeks new and existing initiatives from other leading businesses in the agricultural sector to formulate continuous    

quality improvement and best practice protocols.  

New and existing potato growers are investing capital to develop the industry. Some growers are heading north of Perth due to the 

land already established - for rotation purposes and warmer growing conditions, and new producers south of Perth who             

traditionally grow other fresh produce are now experimenting with potatoes.  

The PMC has continued its ongoing commitment to the food service and restaurant industry via the ‘Potatodor’ program. 

The interaction of our potato producers with the Chefs of Perth, including on farm visits, has been very successful with both     

parties understanding the needs of each other’s business and the potential development of value added opportunities.  

Agency Performance  



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2014/2015 
35 

Agency Performance  

There were several variety trials conducted throughout the season with the cooperation and assistance provided by the     

Variety Development Group and domestic growers. A focus of the trail varieties included those that have the potential to 

accelerate the market transition from white to yellow flesh. This is further evidenced by the commitment shown by the  

Zerella Group for the PMC to be its preferred agent and manage the retail approved Maranca variety going forward.  

Two of the five Wash Packing Agents have invested heavily in modern technology to manage grower’s product.  

New mini tuber stock investment continues to underpin the goal of ensuring that seed is available to support a major transition in 

volume to customer preferred yellow flesh varieties. 

The PMC Operations team’s core focus has been to continue modernising the ware potato supply chain with key initiatives         

including: 

 Partnering with PBR Holders to ensure that new varieties have every opportunity to succeed in the marketplace by  

 conducting robust trials prior to variety commercialisation.  

 Investigating logistics costs in the cool chain transportation of fresh produce from harvest to plate.  

 Seeking opportunities to increase sales for coloured small potatoes, including some volumes currently classified as waste. 

 Increasing the interaction of all stakeholders in the improvement of the supply chain through Supply and Operations       

 Planning.  

 Working with the WA Seed Potato Producers (WASPP) to improve the efficiency and quality of seed supply. 

  Seek expert advice from agronomic specialists and involve them in understanding the issues with Royal Blue growth and 

harvest cycles during summer.  
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Agency Performance  

  

 

The market was disrupted by overproduction, overwhelmingly from one grower during this growing year. 

Seasonal conditions (heat) impacted seed germination in February-March plantings which reduced both yield and quality in July 

and August. The Manjimup and Pemberton districts performance suffered with cool temperatures during the growing cycle and   

extreme heat during harvesting  resulting in quality issues such as internals and the deterioration of skin finish. 

Royal Blue production also struggled during the summer with internals, dull skin finish and slight pipping. Coles continue to          

de-range this variety during the summer months and have requested the PMC to resolve the ongoing issues with this variety. Cool 

storage trials with additional plantings in districts that may have suitable growing conditions during this period of extreme            

temperatures and heat is one option the PMC is considering. 

Attaining blemish free skin finish through all soil types and growing conditions remains a key challenge for the industry. A         

comprehensive quality improvement plan continues to be implemented to assist growers in meeting these challenges. 

The shift to yellow flesh varieties has been slower than anticipated due to continued agronomic and grower learnings which have 

yet to deliver the same sustained quality and yield performances of the white varieties they are intended to replace. 

2014/15 Challenges 
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Agency Performance  

 

In response to the overplant issue, the PMC introduced risk based compliance protocols, which focus the PMC compliance effort  

into those areas of greatest risk in the operation of the regulated system. These protocols aim to improve the earlier assessment, 

detection and identification of potential overplants, whilst monitoring the operation of washpackers to ensure adherence to the Act. 

The PMC has an ongoing commitment to all stakeholders in the regulated market for noncompliant operators to be more             

accountable for their actions. The compliance activities are not only based around grower packouts at Agents, but an overall view 

of market supply from farm gate to plate. With growers directly funding the marketing campaign, the campaign needs to      

demonstrate a return on the investment by a subsequent market increase in consumer demand and through its compliance       

activities in the field the PMC’s objective is to ensure that all DME growers are not disadvantaged by non-complaint activities. 

PMC monitors ‘contract’ potatoes delivered to our Agents on a monthly basis and processes have been established to ensure that 

DME growers are not disadvantaged where contract potatoes are being received into the Agent’s premises. 

 

 
 
 
 

Compliance 

  Class 1 Class 2 Smalls Waste Soil 
Unsaleable 

Smalls 

2014-15 39.8% 26.9% 14.8% 12.1% 2.1% 1.9% 

2013-14 40.4% 26.4% 13.8% 12.1% 2.2% 2.1% 

2012-13 40.2% 26.6% 14.8% 11.3% 2.2% 2.3% 

2011-12 41.0% 26.4% 15.4% 11.7% 2.3% 1.9% 
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 Import volumes remain low due to continued PCN restrictions. 

 

Potato Import Data Comparison 2011 - 2015 

Agency Performance  

High imports in August and September 2013 due to adverse weather and subsequent germination issues. 
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Key Initiatives 

Potato Research WA continues to work closely with the PMC to support projects and initiatives that aim to create sustainable  

quality and value improvements in potato crops. 

Agency Performance  

Engagement with Growers 

 Undertaking detailed performance reviews of each Pool at industry meetings through each of the key regions. 

 Regular newsletter information on current performance, issues, and industry information. 

 Partnering with the Regional Grower Groups to assist them in their quality improvement work. 

Quality Improvement Program 

  Engagement with agronomists consulting to the industry to    

highlight challenges and share key learnings as each season  

progresses. 

 Focus on improving seed handling and storage to optimise its        

 physiological age. 

 Crop testing to assist in the identification and eradication of virus  

 infected ware crops. 

 New DME and seed licence conditions promoting and               

 underwriting agronomy best practice. 
36
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Marketing 

The PMC undertakes category marketing and promotional activity to support demand for fresh ware potatoes in Western Australia. 

Core activities in this program include:  

 Generic category marketing to support category growth and development. 

 Tactical marketing to support individual product initiatives. 

 Market tracking to monitor market pricing and product ranges. 

Major Achievements 

1. Mass Consumer Awareness 

 By the conclusion of FY 2014/15, 94% of our target market (grocery buyers with kids) had been exposed to our media     

 campaign 36 times. This is a high impact campaign, designed to change consumer behavior. 

 A raft of new recipes were developed and released to consumers, focusing on removing the barriers to consumption.  

2. A Social Media Community Established. 

 The social media (Facebook) following of the campaign jumped by nearly 10,000 to more than 12,500. This is an active and     

 engaged community and provides a platform for key marketing messages to be communicated.  

 
 

 

Agency Performance  



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2014/2015 
41 

 

3. Our Largest Potato Week  

 This year’s potato week was launched with a real bang. An integrated multi-channel promotion featured outdoor advertising, 

 radio advertising, press advertising, social media promotions, retailer catalogues and foodservice events. The week         

 culminated with a radio competition to find Perth’s best potato dish.  

4. The Campaign Goes In Store 

 An agreement was reached with IGA to put point of sale across the 270 store WA network to support each of the media 

 bursts.  

 In addition the PMC worked with our washpackers to supply point of sale material to over 120 independent stores.  

5. Seed for Schools Continues to Grow 

 Another 100 schools and child cares were added to our successful Seed for Schools program, meaning there are now over 

 450 registered participants.  

6. Royal Show – Junior Diggerathon 

 More than 22,000 kids had the opportunity to dig potatoes at the Perth Royal Show. Fantastic for educating children on     

 potato growing and adults in recipe and health attributes, the show continues to be a chance for the industry to connect with 

 young families.   

7.   Foodservice Program Expands 

 More high profile chefs were added to the Potatodor program,  which represents the potato industry 

 to the foodservice community.   New networks were formed with TAFE to educate the next            

 generation of WA chefs.  

 

Agency Performance  
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Results 

The PMC uses independent food market researcher and analyst Freshlogic to provide actual till roll data on potatoes purchased at 

retail level.  

The data for 2015 FY recorded the following results: 

1. Maintained average of 50% of households purchasing potatoes. 

       Annual average for Household Penetration in WA was 50% compared to a national average of 49%. Compared to WA,        

 National decline levels show a long term decline. 

2.  Maintained high annual average of quantity purchased per trip.  

      Annual average for Quantity Purchased in WA was 1.52kg compared to a national average of 1.44kg.  

3.  Increased average retail price per kg paid per trip. 

       WA retail prices increased by 31c year on year (to $2.95/kilo) for average price paid for potatoes. 

 National prices also increased year on year to $3.00. The major influencing factors behind this are people switching from         

 lower priced products (such as Nadine) to premium products (such as yellow flesh varieties) that have a higher price point.  

4.  Set record levels for spend per trip, outstripping the national figure and national record. 

 WA’s spend per trip on potatoes hit record levels with the annual average spend reaching $4.53 per trip. This is an increase 

 of $0.46 year on year.  

5. The intention to purchase more potatoes in future has increased by +3%, heavily driven by 18-24 year olds. 

 

 

Agency Performance  
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The PMC uses independent FMCG market research specialist Colmar Brunton to monitor consumer demand. Key results include: 

1. The campaign has driven the WA potato category heath measure by 3%. 

2. The importance and interest in new offers has increased by +0.2. 

Market Tracking 

The PMC tracks market pricing and promotion locally and interstate. This ensures that prices remain competitive in relation to local 

and national markets. Category tracking also assists with idea generation for category development. 

Agency Performance  
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Significant Issues Impacting the Agency 

 

 

 

 

 Section 3 - Significant Issues Impacting the 

Pricing 

 The latest independent market research data continues to highlight that WA’s average potato retail price remains below 

 the national average throughout 2014/15. This is despite the move by the major retailers in WA to a national pricing 

 policy that relies on a higher share of non-white variety at a higher average price point.  

 The Corporation continues to explore value-added opportunities with its agents and customers particularly in pack sizing, 

 branding and individual varieties.  

 The refinement of the Supply and Operations Planning process continues to deliver on supply chain input to all pricing 

 decisions and reviews. 

 A reduction in retail driven pricing promotional activity continues to show further growth opportunities.  

Production Costs 

 ACIL Allen continues to review and provide the appropriate analysis and advice regarding the industry’s cost of   

 production and  recommended grower pool prices. Although competitive pressures are key, the Corporation  takes   

 account of the cost pressures faced by growers to provide reasonable opportunities for growers to make an adequate 

 return from efficient production. This information is used in the decision making process with regard to recommended 

 pricing as required under the Act. 
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Significant Issues Impacting the Agency 

Grower Profitability 

 Grower profitability continues to be constrained by quality related issues. The PMC continues to engage the              

 appropriate grower groups and agronomic consulting services to deliver a platform for continuous quality improvement. 

 The Corporation aims to provide adequate returns to growers, however, this is increasingly challenging given input cost 

 pressures combined with retail price trends.  

 The continued utilisation of Potato Research WA to focus on quality, variety, yield and disease work on behalf of the 

 industry is a key ongoing resource to assist growers in increasing profitability. 

 Surplus potato supplies in 2015 created an unfavourable impact on the value of grower profitability which was not able 

 to be offset by other on-farm quality initiatives or yield benefits. Furthermore, higher than average inputs used in  

 Western Australia potato production processes places further pressure on profitability levels. 

Varieties 

 Retailers continue to push for change in variety and colour mix to align their category development platform. The shift 

 to yellow flesh varieties is being adopted by the big retailers, with new players in the market, such as Aldi, considering 

 using yellows as the flagship colour of choice. 

 The Corporation maintains its strong commitment to the collection of End Point Royalties (EPR) in order to protect the 

 rights of existing holders of Plant Breeder's Rights (PBR) but to also create a platform for the introduction of new       

 varieties. New variety development trials continue to be a critical focus of the Corporation’s commitment to expanding 

 the range of varieties supplied to consumers. Varieties such as Maranca have been fast-tracked due to the existing 

 preferred channels to market that exist for this promising variety. 

 The Corporation continues to focus on consumer preferences in respect of consistent supplies of quality potatoes with 

 an adequate range of varieties for the major market channels. 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

4.1 Financial Statements 

Certification of Financial Statements 

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

The accompanying financial statements of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia have been prepared in 

compliance with the provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly 

the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2015 and the financial position as at 30 June 2015. 

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial 

statements misleading or inaccurate. 

R Edwards 
Chairman 
11 September 2015 

D Smith 
Board Member 
11 September 2015 

S Boczar 
Chief Financial Officer 
11 September 2015 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Statement of Comprehensive Income - for the year ended 30 June 2015 

 

 The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Note 2015 2014 
    $ $ 

Income:    

 Revenue    

 Sales 6 32,485,476 35,566,470 

 Interest revenue 7 69,495 81,257 
 Other revenue 8 20,953 219,833 

 Total Income  32,575,924 35,867,560 
    

 Expenses:    

 Cost of sales 6 28,595,314 31,019,014 
 Employee benefits expense 9 1,382,012 1,501,350 
 Supplies and services 10 2,464,511 2,738,311 
 Depreciation and amortisation expense 11 16,915 33,009 

 Administration expenses 12 417,074 339,219 
 Accommodation expenses 13 34,332 133,708 
 Other expenses 14 150,736 186,898 

 Total Expenses  33,060,893 35,951,509 

      

 Profit/(loss) before allocation to Grower Reserve Fund  -484,969 -83,949 

 Allocation (to)/from Grower Reserve Fund as per Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946  484,967 216,741 

 Profit/(loss) before grants and subsidies from State Government  -2 132,792 

    

 Profit/(loss) for the Period  -2 132,792 

    

 Other Comprehensive Income: Items not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss    

 Changes in asset revaluation reserve 24 356,592 0 

 Total other Comprehensive Income  356,592 0 

    

 Total Comprehensive Income for the Period  356,590 132,792 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Statement of Financial Position - as at 30 June 2015 

 The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Note 2015 2014 
    $ $ 

Assets:    

 Current Assets    

 Cash and cash equivalents 25 2,557,050 2,737,598 
 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 15 0 18,750 

 Receivables 16 1,371,056 1,911,106 

Total Current Assets  3,928,106 4,667,454 

 Non-Current Assets    

 Property, plant and equipment 18 4,043,142 3,707,547 
 Investment Property 18 395,782 391,700 

 Total Non-Current Assets  4,438,924 4,099,247 

 Total Assets  8,367,030 8,766,701 

Liabilities:    

 Current Liabilities    

 Payables 21 322,001 433,546 
 Provisions 22 162,383 116,079 
 Other current liabilities 23 2,909,099 3,102,257 

 Total Current Liabilities  3,393,483 3,651,882 
 Non-Current Liabilities    

 Provisions 22 54,644 67,540 
 Total Non-Current Liabilities  54,644 67,540 

Total Liabilities  3,448,128 3,719,422 

Net Assets:       4,918,902 5,047,279 

 Equity: 24   

 Contributed equity  710,000 710,000 

 Asset Revaluation Reserve  3,662,477 3,305,885 

 Grower Reserve Fund  876,971 1,361,938 

 Accumulated Losses  -330,546 -330,544 

 Total Equity  4,918,902 5,047,279 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Statement of Changes in Equity - for the year ended 30 June 2015 

 
      

 The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read  
Note Contributed  Asset  Grower Accumulated  Total 

 in conjunction with the accompanying notes.   Equity Reserves Reserves Surplus/(Deficit) Equity 

  $ $ $ $ $ 
 

      

Balance at 1 July 2013:  710,000 3,305,885 1,578,679 -463,336 5,131,227 

Changes in accounting policy or correction of        

prior period errors       

 Balance at 1 July 2013   710,000 3,305,885 1,578,679 -463,336 5,131,227 

Surplus / (deficit)     132,792 132,792 

Gains / (losses) from asset revaluations      0 

Contributions by growers    712,856  712,856 

Distributions to growers     -929,597   -929,597 

Total  0  0 -216,741 132,792 -83,948 

Balance at 30 June 2014  24 710,000 3,305,885 1,361,938 -330,544 5,047,279 

Balance at 1 July 2014:  710,000 3,305,885 1,361,938 -330,544 5,047,279 

Surplus / (deficit)     -2 -2 

Gains / (losses) from asset revaluations   356,592   356,592 

Contributions by growers    998,390  998,390 

Distributions to growers    1,483,357  -1,483,357 

Total  0 356,592  -484,967 -2 128,377 

Balance at 30 June 2015  24 710,000 3,662,477 876,971 -330,546 4,918,902 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Statement of Cash Flows - for the year ended 30 June 2015 

 The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. Note 2015 2014 
    $ $ 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:    

 Receipts    

Sale of goods and services  32,991,311 35,215,235 
Interest received  69,495 81,257 
GST receipts on income  297,848 382,352 

Other receipts  20,883 216,903 
    

 Payments:    

Employee benefits  -1,531,220 -1,690,264 
Supplies and services  -2,423,718 -2,675,298 
Administration expenses  -275,459 -233,233 
Accommodation expenses  -34,332 -133,708 
Other Expenses  -159,540 -186,898 
GST payments on purchases  -286,215 -341,691 

Cost of Sales  -28,868,421 -31,891,597 

    

 Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 25 -199,368 -1,256,941 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:    

Purchase of non-current physical assets  0 -33,231 
Proceeds from asset disposals  70 16,136 

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities  70 -17,095 

    

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:  0 0 

 Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities  0 0 

    

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  -199,298 -1,274,036 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period   2,756,348 4,030,384 

Cash and Cash Equivalent at the end of the Period 25 2,557,050  2,756,348  
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Notes to the Financial Statements - for the year ended 30 June 2015 

Note 1: Australian Accounting Standards 

General 

The Authority’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015 have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting 

Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting 

Standard Board (AASB). The Authority has adopted any applicable, new and revised Australian Accounting Standards from their 

operative dates. 

Early adoption of standards 

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of         

Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting       

Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Authority for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 

2015. 

Note 2: Summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) General statement 

The Authority is a not for profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance with Australian  

Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB 

as applied by the Treasurer's instructions.  Several of these are modified by the Treasurer's instructions to vary application,          

disclosure, format and wording. 
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer's instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the preparation of financial 

statements and take precedence over Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and    

other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB. Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial    

effect upon the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the        

financial statements. 

(b) Basis of preparation  

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention, except for 

land, buildings and infrastructure which have been measured at fair value. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods 

presented unless otherwise stated. 

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest dollar ($). 

Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses judgements that have been made in the     

process of applying the Authority’s accounting policies resulting in the most significant effect on amounts recognised in the financial           

statements. 

Note 4 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the future and other key sources of       

estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying 

amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

(c) Reporting entity 

The reporting entity comprises the Authority only.  
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Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

(d) Contributed equity 

AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities requires transfers in the nature of 

equity contributions, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the 

owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as equity              

contributions.  Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to 

Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have been credited directly to Contributed equity. 

The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, are            

designated as contributions by owners where the transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal. 

(e) Income  

Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. The following specific recognition       

criteria must be also met before revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows: 

Sale of goods 

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership    

transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably. 

Provision of services 

Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. 

Interest 

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues. 
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Rental income 

Rental income arising on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term, recognised as income     

in the periods in which it is earned. 

Gains 

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include gains arising on the disposal of non-current     
assets and some revaluations of non-current assets 
 

 

(f) Income tax 
 
The Authority is exempt from Income Tax. 

 

(g) Property, plant and equipment and infrastructure 

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 

Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the cost of utilising   

assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives.  Items of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure costing less than 

$5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of 

similar items which are significant in total). 

The Authority does not have infrastructure. 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost. 

For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the fair value at the date of              

acquisition. 
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Subsequent measurement  

Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the revaluation model is used for the measurement of land and buildings and historical 

cost for all other property, plant and equipment.  Land and buildings are carried at fair value less accumulated depreciation 

(buildings only) and accumulated impairment losses. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost 

less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Where market-based evidence is available, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of current market buying   

values determined by reference to recent market transactions. When buildings are revalued by reference to recent market             

transactions, the accumulated depreciation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount         

restated to the revalued amount. 

In the absence of market-based evidence, the fair value of land and buildings is determined on the basis of existing use. This     

normally applies where buildings are specialised or where land use is restricted.  Fair value for existing use assets is determined by 

reference to the cost of replacing the remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement 

cost.  Where the fair value of buildings is determined on the depreciated cost basis, the gross carrying amount and the accumulated 

depreciation are restated proportionately. 

Fair value for restricted use in land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with similar approximate utility (high 

restricted use land) or market value of comparable unrestricted land (low restricted use land). 

Land and buildings are independently valued annually by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services) 

and recognised annually to ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from the asset’s fair value at the end of the 

reporting period. 

The most significant assumptions in estimating fair value are made in assessing whether to apply the existing use basis to assets 

and in determining estimated economic life. Professional judgement by the valuer is required where the evidence does not provide 

a clear distinction between market type assets and existing use assets. 
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Investment property 

Investment property principally comprising freehold buildings is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by the Authority. 

Investment property is carried at fair value, as mandated by TI 954, representing open-market value determined annually by        

external valuers. Changes in fair value are recorded in the profit or loss as part of other income.  

Derecognition 

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure, any revaluation surplus relating to 

that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus. 

Asset revaluation surplus 

The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets on a class of    

assets basis. 

Depreciation 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner that    

reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Land is not depreciated.  Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed annually.   
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Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

 

 

 

 
 
(a) Includes software that is integral to the operation of related hardware. Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition. 

 
The Authority does not have any Intangible Assets. 
 
(h) Impairment of assets 
 
Property, plant and equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each     
reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount is estimated.  Where the recoverable amount 
is less than the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment 
loss is recognised.  As the Authority is a not for profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 
 
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, where the         
replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant change in useful life.  Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to 
verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic 
benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs. 
 
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at the end of 
each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment. 
 

Buildings 20 years 

Plant and equipment 5 years 

Office equipment 5 years 

Mobile equipment 10 years 

Office furniture 10 years 

Field equipment 10 years 

Computer equipment - including software 
(a)

 3 years 
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The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present value of    

future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment 

where fair value is determined by reference to market-based evidence.  Where fair value is determined by reference to depreciated 

replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the recoverable amount is measured.  Surplus assets at cost are 

tested for indications of impairment at the end of each reporting period. 

Refer to note 20 ‘Impairment of assets’ for the outcome of impairment reviews and testing. 

Refer also to note 2(m) ‘Receivables’ and note 16 ‘Receivables’ for impairment of receivables. 

(i) Financial Instruments  

In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the Authority has three categories of financial instrument: 

-         Loans and receivables; 

-         Held-to-maturity investments (commercial bills and term deposits); and 

-         Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

-         Financial Assets 

-         Cash and cash equivalents 

-         Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

-         Receivables 

-         Term deposits 

-         Financial Liabilities 

-         Payables 
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(j) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets     

comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a 

known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts.   

(k) Accrued salaries 

Accrued salaries (refer to note 21 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year. Accrued 

salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end.  The Authority considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to 

be equivalent to its net fair value.  

(l) Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the net realisable value as they are in the hands of the merchant. Inventories are potatoes delivered to 

the Authority but not yet graded by the merchant. Their cost is measured as the tonnage x current payment rates.  

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally equates to the transaction cost or the 

face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value because there is no interest rate         

applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the effect of discounting is not material. 

Refer to note 2(n) ‘Investments and other financial costs’. 
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(m)     Receivables 

Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e.                

impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are 

written-off against the allowance account.  The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective 

evidence that the Authority will not be able to collect the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for       

settlement within 14 days.   

Refer also to note 2(i) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note 16 ‘Receivables’.  

(n) Investments and other financial assets 

The Authority classifies its investments into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and     

receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets.  The classification depends on the purpose for 

which the investments were acquired.  Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and           

re-evaluates this designation at the end of each reporting period.  Investments not at fair value are initially recognised at cost being 

the fair value of consideration given, including directly attributable transaction costs. 

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates are classified as held-to-maturity when 

management has a positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined period are not 

included in this classification. 

Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments, such as commercial bills, are subsequently measured at amortised cost    

using the effective interest method.  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, 

over the period to maturity.  For investments carried at amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of      

Comprehensive Income when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process. 

The Authority assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets 

is impaired. 



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2014/2015 
64 

Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

(o) Payables 

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Authority becomes obliged to make future payments as a result of a      

purchase of assets or services.  The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as they are generally settled within 30 days. 

Refer to note 2(i) ‘Financial Instruments’ and note 21 ‘Payables’. 

(p) Provisions 

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is a present legal or constructive obligation 

as a result of a past event and when the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can 

be made of the amount of the obligation.  Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. 

Refer to note 22 ‘Provisions’. 

Provisions - employee benefits 

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period. 

Annual leave 

Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and is therefore considered 

to be ‘other long term employee benefits’.  The annual leave liability is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts        

expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non salary  

components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of       

service. The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national             

government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Authority does not have an unconditional right to defer           

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. 
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Long service leave 

Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and is therefore          

recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the                

remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels including non salary  

components such as employer superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of       

service. The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national             

government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the Authority does not have an unconditional right 

to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  Pre-conditional and conditional long 

service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Authority has an unconditional right to defer the        

settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the requisite years of service. 

Superannuation 

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other funds administer public sector superannuation                  

arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular 

schemes for public sector employees varies according to commencement and implementation dates. 

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the 

Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995. 

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either the Pension Scheme or the GSS     

became non contributory members of the West State Superannuation Scheme (WSS).  Employees commencing employment on or 

after 16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS).  From 30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS 

or GESBS and new employees became able to choose their preferred superannuation fund.   
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The Authority makes concurrent contributions to GESB or other funds on behalf of employees in compliance with the                

Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992.  Contributions to these accumulation schemes 

extinguish the  Authority’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not members of the Pension 

Scheme or GSS. 

The Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer benefit for employees who transferred to the GSS are defined benefit schemes.  These 

benefits are wholly unfunded and the liabilities for future payments are provided at the end of the reporting period.  The liabilities  

under these schemes have been calculated separately for each scheme annually by Actuaries using the projected unit credit   

method. 

The expected future payments are discounted to present value using market yields at the end of the reporting period on national     

government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

The GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS, where the current service superannuation charge is paid by the Authority to the GESB, are     

defined contribution schemes.  The liabilities for current service superannuation charges under the GSS, the WSS, and the GESBS 

are extinguished by the concurrent payment of employer contributions to the GESB. 

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government reporting.  However, from an    

agency perspective, apart from the transfer benefits, it is a defined contribution plan under AASB 119. 

Refer to note 2(q) ‘Superannuation expense’. 
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Provisions – other 

Employment on-costs 

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as       

liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred.  Employment on-costs are included as part of 

‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part of the Authority’s ‘Employee benefits expense’.  The related liability is included in 

‘Employment on-costs provision’. 

Refer to note 14 ‘Other expenses’ and note 22 ‘Provisions’. 

(q) Superannuation expense 

Superannuation expense is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in profit or loss for defined contribution plans,    

including the concurrent payment of employer contributions to the GSS scheme, as and when the contributions fall due. 

For defined benefit plans (the Pension Scheme and the pre-transfer component of the GSS), changes in the defined benefit         

obligation are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income either in profit or loss, or other comprehensive income as   

follows: 

 profit or loss: 

 - current service cost; 

 - past service cost, 

 - interest cost 

 other comprehensive income: 

 - actuarial gains and losses 

Refer to note 2 (p) ‘Provisions - Employee Benefits’ under Superannuation.    

(r) Comparative figures 

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures presented in the current financial year.  
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Note 3: Judgments made by management in applying accounting policies 

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the application of accounting policies that 

have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.  The Authority evaluates these judgements         

regularly. 

There are no judgements that have been made in the process of applying accounting policies that have had any significant effect on 

the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and various other factors that have a     

significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

Long Service Leave 

Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Authority’s long service leave provision include expected future salary 

rates, discount rates, employee retention rates and expected future payments.  Changes in these estimations and assumptions may 

impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave provision. 

Note 4: Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
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Int 21 

Levies 
This interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to pay a government levy imposed should be 
recognised. There is no financial impact for the Authority at reporting date. 

AASB  10      
Consolidated Financial Statements 
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
and Int 112 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments. 
The Adoption of the new standard has not financial impact for the Authority as it does not impact accounting for  
related bodies and the Authority has no interests in other entities. 

AASB  11    Joint Arrangements 
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures, introduces new principles 
for determining the type of joint arrangement that exists, which are more aligned to the actual rights and obligations 
of the parties to the arrangement. There is no financial impact for the Authority as the new standard continues to 
require the recognition of the Authority’s share of assets and share of liabilities for the unincorporated joint          
operation. 

AASB  12         Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure requirements in AASB 127 Consolidated and      
Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128 Investments in Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. 
There is no financial impact for the Authority at reporting date. 

AASB  127          Separate Financial Statements 
This standard, issued August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,     
removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier standard whilst retaining accounting and disclosure          
requirements for the preparation of separate financial statements. There is no financial impact for the Authority at 
reporting date. 

 
 

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 

The Authority has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
1 July 2014 that impacted on the Authority. 

Note 5: Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 
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AASB  128          Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
This Standard Supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a number of clarifications for the  
accounting treatments of changed ownership interest. 
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Authority as it does not hold investments in    
associates and joint ventures. 

AASB  1031         Materiality 
This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing Australian guidance on materiality not       
available in IFRSs and refers to guidance on materiality in other Australian pronouncements.  
There is no financial impact for the Authority at reporting date. 

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 
This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general purpose financial statements of not-for-profit 
entities within the General Government Sector. As the Authority does not reside within the General Government 
Sector, it is not required to disclose additional budgetary information and explanations of major variances between 
actual and budgeted amounts. 

AASB    
2011-7         

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangement       
Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 
16 & 17] 
This Standard gives effect to consequential changes  arising from the issue of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 
Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. There is no financial 
impact for the Authority at reporting date. 

AASB      
2012-3       

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 
132] 
This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in applying some of 
the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and 
that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net settlement. There is no financial impact 
for the Authority at reporting date. 

AASB      
2013-3       

Amendments to AASB 136 - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 
This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes. There is no financial impact for the Authority at        
reporting date. 



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2014/2015 
71 

Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

AASB   
2013-4          

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting 
[AASB 139] 
This Standard permits the continuation of hedge accounting in circumstances where a derivative, which has been 
designated as a hedging instrument, is novated from one counterparty to a central counterparty as a consequence 
of laws or regulations. The Authority does not routinely enter into derivatives or hedges, therefore there is no     
financial impact. 

AASB  
2013-8 
 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for Profit Entities - 
Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 1049] 
The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in determining whether a not-for-profit   
entity controls another entity when financial returns are not a key attribute of the investor’s relationship. The  
Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather the impact results from the adoption of the amended AASB 
10. 

AASB 
2013-9 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments 
Part B of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards arising from the deletion of references to 
AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. Part B of the Standard has no 
financial impact. 

AASB  
2014-1 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
Part A of this Standard consists primarily of clarifications to Accounting Standards and has no financial impact for 
the Authority. 
Part B of this Standard has no financial impact as the Authority contributes to schemes that are either defined  
contribution plans, or deemed to be defined contribution plans. 
Part C of this Standard has no financial impact as it removes references to AASB 1031 Materiality from a number 
of Accounting Standards. 

AASB 
2015-7 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities. 
This standard relieves not-for-profit public sector entities from the reporting burden associated with various        
disclosures required by AASB 13 for assets within scope of AASB 116 that are held primarily for their current    
service potential rather than to generate future net cash inflows. It has no financial impact. 
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  Operative for 
reporting periods 

beginning on/
after 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,          
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments. 
The mandatory application date of this Standard was amended to 1 January 2018 after being    
amended by AASB 2012-6, AASB 2013-9 and AASB 2014-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the   
Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
This Standard establishes the principles that the Authority shall apply to report useful information to 
users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash 
flows arising from a contract with a customer. The Authority has not yet determined the application or 
the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2017 

AASB 
2010-7 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 
4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 
5, 10, 12, 19 & 127] 
This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and     
Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. The mandatory application date of 
this Standard has been amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1 to 1 January 2018. The        
Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

Voluntary changes in accounting policy 

The Authority has not voluntarily changed any accounting policies in the financial year reported.  

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 

The Authority cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of        

Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements or by an exemption from TI 1101.  By virtue of a limited exemption, 

the Authority has early adopted AASB 2015-7 Amendments for Australian Standards - Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit    

Public Sector Entities. Where applicable, the Authority plans to apply these Australian Accounting Standards from their application 

date. 
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AASB 
2013-9 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial 
Instruments. 
Part C of this omnibus Standard defers the application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C). The   
application date of AASB 9 was subsequently deferred to 1 January 2018 by AASB 2014-1. The       
Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of AASB 9.  

1 Jan 2017 

AASB 
2014-1 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
Part E of this Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 and consequential amendments to other 
Standards. It has not yet been assessed by the Authority to determine the application or potential      
impact of the Standard. 

 

1 Jan 2015 

 

    
AASB 
2014-3 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interest in Joint    
Operations [AASB 1 & 11] 
The Authority neither establishes Joint Operations in pursuit of its objectives nor routinely acquire    
interests in Joint Operations. Therefore, there is no financial impact on application of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 
2014-4 

Amendments to Australian Standards - Clarification of Acceptable methods of Depreciation and    
Amortisation [AASB 116 & 138] 
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the Authority as depreciation and    
amortisation is not determined by reference to revenue generation, but by reference to consumption of 
future economic benefits. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 
2014-5 

Amendments of Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15 
This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian Accounting Standard 
(including interpretation) arising from the issuance of AASB 15. The Authority has not yet determined 
the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2017 

AASB  
2014-7 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) 
This Standard gives effect to the consequential amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
(including interpretations) arising from the issuance of AASB 9 (December 2014). The Authority has 
not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2018 

AASB  
2014-8 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2014) - Application 
of AASB 9 (December 2009) and AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 9 (2009 & 2010)] 
This Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2009) and AASB 9 
Financial Instruments (December 2010, arising from the issuance of AASB 9 Financial Instruments in 
December 2014. The Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard. 

1 Jan 2015 
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AASB 
2014-9 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 
[AASB 1, 127 & 128] 
This Standard amends AASB 127, and consequentially amends AASB 1 and AASB 128, to allow 
entities to use the equity method of accounting for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associates in their separate financial statements. The Authority has not yet determined the           
application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 
2014-10 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an      
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture [AASB 10 & 128] 
This Standards amends AASB 10 and AASB 128 to address an inconsistency between the          
requirements in AASB 10 and those in AASB 128 (August 2011), in dealing with the sale or         
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The Authority has not 
yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standards. 

 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB  
2015-1 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Annual Improvements to Australian Accounting 
Standards 2012-2014 Cycle [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 11, 110, 119, 121, 133, 134, 137 & 140] 
These amendments arise from the issuance of International Financial Reporting Standard Annual 
Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle in September 2014, and editorial corrections. The        
Authority has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 
2015-2 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101 
[AASB 7, 101, 134 & 1049] 
This Standard amends AASB 101 to provide clarification regarding the disclosure requirements in 
AASB 101. Specifically, the Standard proposes narrow-focus amendments to address some of the 
concerns expressed about existing presentation and disclosure requirements and to ensure entities 
are able to use judgement when applying a Standard in determining  what information to disclose in 
their financial statements. There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2016 

AASB 
2015-3 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031       
Materiality 
This Standard complete the withdrawal of references to AASB 1031 in all Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations, allowing that Standard to effectively be withdrawn. There is no      
financial impact. 

1 Jul 2015 

AASB 
2015-6 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Extending Related Party Disclosures to          
Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities [AASB 10, 124 & 1049] 
The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to include application by not-for-profit public sector 
entities. Implementation guidance is included to assist application of the Standard by not-for-profit 
public sector entities. There is no financial impact. 

1 Jul 2016 
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Note 6: Trading profit 

 
2015 2014 

 
 $ $ 

Sales 32,485,476 35,566,470 

Cost of Sales:   

Purchase from Growers 27,621,001 30,065,571 

End Point Royalties/Levies 974,313 953,443 

Cost of Goods Sold 28,595,314 31,019,014 

  Trading Profit 3,890,162 4,547,456 

Note 7: Interest revenue. 

 
2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Money Market Deposit 24,821 27,396 

Main Operating Account 44,674 53,861 

Total: 69,495 81,257 

Note 8: Other revenue. 

 
2015 2014 

 
 $ $ 

Store Rentals - 66,698 

Laboratory Analysis - - 

Food Services - 114,000 

Final Dividend—WPPL 8,393 - 

Seed Sales 12,490 22,999 

Asset Sale Proceeds       70 16,136 

Total: 20,953 219,833 
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Note 9: Employee benefits expense  
2015 2014 

 
 $ $ 

Wages and Salaries 
(a)

 1,204,133 1,354,918 

Superannuation – defined contribution plans 
(b)

 177,878 146,432 

Total: 1,382,012 1,501,350 

Note 10: Supplies and services 
 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Consultants and Contractors 642,349 631,024 

Operational Trials 16,212 39,742 

Marketing 1,666,025 1,931,027 

Travel 30,969 38,645 

Recruitment 40,793 63,013 

Other 68,163 34,860 

Total: 2,464,511 2,738,311 

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component, leave entitlements including superannuation contribution component. 
(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and GESB Super Scheme (contributions paid). 

 
Employment on-costs such as workers’ compensation insurance are included in note 14 ‘Other expenses’.  
 
The employment on-costs liability is included at note 22 ‘Provisions’.  
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Note 11: Depreciation expense  2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Plant and Equipment - 2,051 

Buildings 4,335 17,340 

Office Furniture and Fittings 3,170 3,170 

Office and Field Equipment - 1,812 

Computer Equipment 9,410 8,636 

Total: 16,915 33,009 

Note 12: Administration expenses 
 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Communication 20,259 25,437 

Consumables 18,674 27,628 

Audit Fees 62,733 71,453 

Insurance 33,273 29,445 

Motor Vehicle Expenses 98,127 113,211 

Rental/Leasing 58,357 29,736 

Payroll Tax 37,102 20,152 

Business Improvements 60,363 - 

Other 28,186 22,157 

Total: 417,074 339,219 

 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Equipment – non capital expenditure / Office 
relocation 

- 80,319 

Repairs and Maintenance 16,002 17,407 

Cleaning and Security 10,502 12,482 

Gardening 4,359 9,912 

Rates and Utilities 3,469 13,589 

Total: 34,332 133,708 

Note 13: Accommodation expenses 
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Note 14: Other expenses  2015 2014 

 
 $ $ 

Research & Development 131,986 164,435 

Asset Disposals - 13,206 

Bond 18,750 - 

Other - 9,257 

Total: 150,736 186,898 

Note 15: Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

 
2015 2014 

 
 $ $ 

Bond – DSL - 18,750 

Total: - 18,750 

 
2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Current:   

Trade debtors 1,350,592 1,856,425 

Prepayments - 22,583 

GST Receivable 20,464 32,098 

Total Current: 1,371,056 1,911,106 

Note 16: Receivables 

The Authority holds $1,490,000 in bank guarantees as security relating to trade debtors. 
Refer to note 2(m) ‘Receivables’ and note 30 ‘Financial Instruments’. 
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Note 17: Investments 

 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Balance at start of period 640,007 640,007 

Disposal of Investment -640,007 - 

Balance at the end of the period: - 640,007 

 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Non-Current:   

Investment WPPL - 640,007 

Impairment - -640,007 

Total non-current: - - 

Note 18: Property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation of changes in the allowance for impairment of receivables:  

 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Land   

At fair value 
(a)

 3,930,000 3,600,000 

Accumulated impairment losses - - 

Total: 3,930,000 3,600,000 

(a) The Land is owned by the Crown and the property was previously subject to a management order that vested the Authority with 
the appropriate power to use the property. The property is now surplus to the needs of the Authority and it has relinquished its   
vested management control during 2015 to enable the Department of Lands to take control and prepare the property for an          
alternate use or to be listed on the government’s asset sale program. The valuation of the land is also reflected in the revaluation   
reserve. 
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 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Buildings:   

  At fair value 
(a)

 80,802 79,968 

  Accumulated depreciation - -17,340 

  Accumulated impairment losses - - 

Total: 80,802 62,628 

Plant and Equipment:   

  At cost  24,240 24,240 

  Accumulated depreciation -24,240 -24,240 

Total: - - 

Office furniture and fittings:   

  At cost  48,791 48,791 

  Accumulated depreciation -26,636 -23,467 

Total: 22,155 25,324 

Office and field equipment:   

  At cost  61,624 67,802 

  Accumulated depreciation -61,624 -67,802 

Total: - - 

Computer Equipment:   

  At cost 180,847 180,847 

  Accumulated depreciation -170,662 -161,252 

Total: 10,185 19,595 

Investment property   

Building at fair value 
(a)

 395,782 391,700 

Accumulated impairment losses - - 

Total: 395,782 391,700 

Total Property, Plant and Equipment: 4,438,924 4,099,247 

(a) Land and buildings were revalued as at 1 July 2014 by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). The valuations were     
performed during the year ended 30 June 2015 and recognised at 30 June 2015. In undertaking the revaluation, fair value of buildings was determined on 
the basis of depreciated replacement cost and fair value of land was determined on the basis of comparison with market evidence for land with low level 
utility (high restricted use land). 

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set out in the table below.  
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Land Building 
Plant & 

equipment 

Office 
furniture 
& fittings 

Office  
& field 

equipment 

Computer      
equipment 

Investment 
property 

Total 

2015 $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Carrying amount at start of period 3,600,000 62,628 0 25,324 0 19,595 391,700 4,099,247 

Additions        0 

Transfers        0 

Other disposals        0 

Classified as held for sale        0 

Revaluation increments / 
(decrements) 

(a)
 330,000 22,510     4,082 356,592 

Impairment losses         0 

Impairment losses reversed         0 

Depreciation  -4,335 0 -3,170 0 -9,410  -16,915 

Carrying amount at end of period 3,930,000 80,802 0 22,155 0 10,185 395,782 4,438,924 

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting period are set 
out in the table below.  

2014         

Carrying amount at start of period 3,600,000 79,968 15,257 23,494 1,812 0 391,700 4,112,231 

Additions    5,000  28,231  33,231 

Transfers        0 

Other disposals   -13,206     -13,206 

Classified as held sale        0 

Revaluation increments / 
(decrements) 

(a)
        0 

Impairment losses         0 

Impairment losses reversed         0 

Depreciation    -17,340 -2,051 -3,170 -1,812  -8,636   -33,009 

Carrying amount at end of period 3,600,000 62,628 0 25,324 0 19,595 391,700 4,099,247 

(a) Recognised in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income. Where the carrying amount of a class of assets is increased as a result of a revaluation, 
the net revaluation increase is recognised in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation 
surplus. The net revaluation increase shall be recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a net revaluation decrease of the same class of  
assets previously recognised in the profit or loss. 
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Note 19: Fair value measurements 

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 or 3 during the period. 
 
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) 

 Assets measured at fair value: Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 
Fair Value At 

End of Period 

 2015 $ $ $ $ 

 Land (Note 18) - - 3,930,000 3,930,000 

 Buildings (Note 18) - - 476,584 476,584 

 0 0 4,406,584 4,406,584 

 2015 
Land Buildings 

$ $ 

 Fair Value at start of period 3,600,000 454,328 

 Additions - - 

 Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Profit or Loss - - 

 Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other      
Comprehensive Income 

330,000 26,592 

 Transfers (from/(to) Level 2) - - 

 Disposals - - 

 Depreciation Expense - -4,335 

 Fair Value at end of period 3,930,000 476,584 

Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss, under 
‘Other Gains’ 

- - 

 Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in 
profit or loss for assets held at the end of the reporting period 

- - 
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 2014 
Land Buildings 

$ $ 

 Fair Value at start of period 3,600,000 471,668 

 Additions - - 

 Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Profit or Loss - - 

 Revaluation increments/(decrements) recognised in Other                                    
Comprehensive Income 

- - 

 Transfers (from/(to) Level 2) - - 

 Disposals - - 

 Depreciation Expense - -17,340 

 Fair Value at end of period 3,600,000 454,328 

 Total gains or losses for the period included in profit or loss, under 
‘Other Gains’ 

- - 

 Change in unrealised gains or losses for the period included in 
profit or loss for assets held at the end of the reporting period 

- - 
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Valuation processes 

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the period. 

Transfers in and out of a fair value level are recognised on the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the    

transfer.  Transfers are generally limited to assets newly classified as non-current assets held for sale as Treasurer's instructions 

require valuations of land, buildings and infrastructure to be categorised within Level 3 where the valuations will utilise significant 

Level 3 inputs on a recurring basis. 

Fair value for existing use specialised buildings and infrastructure assets is determined by reference to the cost of replacing the   

remaining future economic benefits embodied in the asset, i.e. the depreciated replacement cost.  Depreciated replacement cost is 

the current replacement cost of an asset less accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such cost to reflect the already 

consumed or expired economic benefit, or obsolescence, and optimisation (where applicable) of the asset. Current replacement 

cost is generally determined by reference to the market observable replacement cost of a substitute asset of comparable utility and 

the gross project size specifications. 

Fair value for restricted use land is based on market value, by either using market evidence of sales of comparable land that is    

unrestricted less restoration costs to return the site to a vacant and marketable condition (low restricted use land), or, comparison 

with market evidence for land with low level utility (high restricted use land). 

No restoration costs have been estimated for the purpose of returning the site to a vacant and marketable condition. The site has 

been listed with the Department of Lands of the Corporation’s intent to vacate the property without any liability to return the site to a 

marketable condition. 

Significant Level 3 inputs used by the Authority are derived and evaluated as follows: 

Historical cost per square metre floor area (m2) 

The costs of constructing specialised buildings with similar utility are extracted from financial records of the Authority, then indexed 

by movements in CPI. 



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2014/2015 
85 

Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Consumed economic benefit/obsolescence of asset 

These are estimated by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 

Selection of land with restricted utility 

Fair value for restricted use land is determined by comparison with market evidence for land with low level utility. Relevant         

comparators of land with low level utility are selected by the Western Australian Land Information Authority (Valuation Services). 

Historical cost per cubic metre (m3) 

The costs of construction of infrastructure are extracted from financial records of the Authority and indexed by movements in      

construction costs by quantity surveyors. 

Information about significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) in fair value measurements 

Description  
Fair Value 

2015 $ 

Fair Value 

2014 $ 

Valuation   

Technique(s) 

Unobservable      

Inputs 

Range of              
unobservable       

inputs       
(weighted   
average) 

2015 

Range of              
unobservable       

inputs       
(weighted   
 average) 

2014 

Land $3,930,000 $3,600,000 Current Use 
Selection of land with 
similar approximate 

utility 
$234 per m

2 
$214 per m

2 

Buildings $476,584 $454,328 
Depreciated    
Replacement 

Cost 

Historical cost per 
square metre floor 

area (m
2
) 

$139 per m2 $133 per m2 

Relationship of  
  unobservable    

  inputs to fair value 

Higher value of similar land 
increases estimated fair value. 

Higher historical cost per m
2
 

increases fair value. 

Reconciliations of the opening and closing balances are provided in Notes 18. 
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Basis of Valuation 

In the absence of market-based evidence, due to the specialised nature of some non financial assets, these assets are valued at 

Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy on an existing use basis. The existing use basis recognises that restrictions or limitations have 

been placed on their use and disposal when they are not determined to be surplus to requirements. These restrictions are imposed 

by virtue of the assets being held to deliver a specific community service and the Authority’s enabling legislation. 

The site has been listed on the government’s asset sale program since early 2014/15 and been listed with the Department of Lands 

to obtain expression of interest from parties willing to take over the site. The Corporation has no immediate alternate use for the 

property and anticipates it to be transferred to another agency or an external developer during 2015/2016 without any risk or liability 

to return the site to a marketable state. 

 

 

There were no indications of impairment to property, plant and equipment, infrastructure and intangible assets at 30 June 2015. 

The Authority held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during the reporting period, and at the end of the   

reporting period there were no intangible assets not yet available for use. 

All surplus assets at 30 June 2015 have either been classified as assets held for sale or written-off.  

Note 20: Impairment of fixed assets 
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 2015 2014 

Current:  $ $ 

Sundry creditors 63,095 68,229 

End Point Royalties 146,547 218,860 

Tax liabilities 60,794 50,848 

Other creditors 40,786 37,052 

Accrued expenses 0 6,236 

Accrued salaries 10,779 33,571 

Security deposits held 0 18,750 

Total current: 322,001 433,546 

Note 21: Payables. 

 2015 2014 

Current:   $ $ 

Employee benefits provision:   

 Annual leave 
(a)

 91,707 82,068 

 Long service leave 
(b)

 70,676 34,011 

Total current: 162,383 116,079 

Non-Current:    

Employee benefits provision:   

 Long service leave 
(b)

 54,644 67,540 

 Deferred salary scheme   

Total non-current: 54,644 67,540 

Note 22: Provisions.  

(a) 
Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months 

after the reporting period.  Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows: 
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 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 68,290 76,599 

More than 12 months after the reporting period 23,417 5,469 

Total: 91,707 82,068 

Note 23: Other liabilities 

(b) 
Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 

12 months after the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as follows:  

 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 12,724 34,011 

More than 12 months after the reporting period 112,596 67,450 

Total: 125,320 101,551 

(c) 
The provision is the present value of expected future payments. The associated expense, apart from the unwinding of the     

discount (finance cost), is disclosed in note 12 ‘Administration expenses’.  

 2015 2014 

Current:  $ $ 

Payments due to growers first and Interims 1,955,420 2,486,332 

Payments due to growers final 953,680 615,924 

Total current: 2,909,100 3,102,257 
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Note 24: Equity 

The Western Australian Government holds the equity interest in the Authority on behalf of the community. Equity represents the   
residual interest in the net assets of the Authority. The asset revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the 
revaluation of  non-current assets.  

 2015 2014 

Contributed equity  $ $ 

Balance at start of period 710,000 710,000 

Balance at end of period 710,000 710,000 

Reserves   

Asset revaluation surplus:   

  Balance at start of period 3,305,885 3,305,885 

  Net revaluation increments / (decrements):   

                      Land 330,000 0 

                      Buildings 26,592 0 

Balance at end of period 3,662,477 3,305,885 

Grower reserve:   

  Balance at start of period 1,361,938 1,578,679 

  Contributions from pools 998,390 712,856 

  Distributions to pools -1,483,357 -929,597 

Balance at end of period 876,971 1,361,938 

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)   

Balance at start of period -330,544 -463,336 

Result for the period -2 132,792 

Balance at end of period -330,546 -330,544 
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Note 25: Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows 

Reconciliation of cash 
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of 
Financial Position as follows:  

 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents (refer note 15.) 0 18,750 

Cash and cash equivalents:   

  Cash at bank 2,056,885 1,732,371 

  Cash on deposit 500,000 1,004,827 

  Cash on hand 165 400 

Balance at end of period 2,557,050 2,756,348 

Reconciliation of profit after income tax equivalent to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities. 

 2015 2014 
  $ $ 

Profit after income tax equivalents -2 132,792 

Non-cash items:   

  Depreciation and amortisation expense 16,915 33,009 

  Gain on asset disposals -70 -2,930 

(Increase)/decrease in assets:   

  Current receivables © 528,416 -373,818 

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:   

  Current payables 
(c) 

 -111,546 -955,201 

  Current provisions 46,304 -12,696 

  Other current liabilities -193,156 114,648 

  Non-current provisions -12,896 31,426 

Net GST receipts/(payments) (a)
 0 0 

Change in GST in receivables/payables (b)
 11,634 -7,430 

Net grower reserve movements -484,967 -216,741 

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  -199,368 -1,256,941 

(a) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions. 
(b) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables. 
(c) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are 

not included in these items as they do not form part of the reconciling items. 
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Note 26: Commitments 
 2015 2014 

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments:  $ $ 

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable as follows:   

  Within 1 year 50,309 41,854 

  Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 29,932 16,057 

  Later than 5 years   

Total: 80,241 57,911 

These commitments are all inclusive of GST.  

Note 27: Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Contingent Liabilities 

Contaminated sites 

Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Authority is required to report known and suspected contaminated sites to the          

Department of Environment and Conservation (DEC). In accordance with the Act, DEC classifies these sites on the basis of the risk 

to human health, the environment and environmental values. Sites classified as contaminated (or suspected) may impose a liability 

on the Authority for remediation expenses.   

During 2014 the Authority reported one suspected contaminated site to DEC which has been classified as possibly contaminated. 

The Authority is unable to assess the likely outcome of the classification process, and accordingly, it is not practicable to estimate 

the potential financial effect or to identify the uncertainties relating to accordingly, it is not practicable to estimate the potential       

financial effect or to identify the uncertainties relating to the amount or timing of any outflows. As the site is listed on the             

Government’s asset sale program, the Authority has vested all its control and interest with the Department of Lands to successfully 

transfer the property on an as is basis without any current or future liability or remediation exposure to the Authority. 
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Note 28: Events occurring after the end of the reporting period 

Litigation in progress 

A plaintiff has made a claim for $63,080 inclusive of legal costs in relation to an alleged case of unfair dismissal. It is likely the claim 

will be settled in 2016. 

Contingent Liabilities  

The Authority is not aware of any other contingent liabilities as at the financial reporting date. 

Contingent Assets 

The Authority is not aware of any contingent assets as at the financial reporting date.  

There have been no significant events subsequent to the reporting date that would have any material effect upon the Authority and 

all operations contained therein. 
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Note 29: Explanatory statement 

Significant variations between estimates and actual results are shown below. Significant variations are considered to be those 

greater than 10% or $100,000. 

Significant variances between  
Budget and Actual 2015 2015 

Actual 
$ 

2015 
Budget 

$ 

Variance 
$ 

Sales 32,485,476 36,053,828 -3,568,352 

Cost of Sales 28,595,314 31,311,119 -2,715,805 

Interest Revenue 69,495 40,519 28,976 

Other Revenue 20,953 6,964 13,989 

Employee Benefits Expense 1,382,012 1,542,105 -160,093 

Supplies & Services 2,464,511 2,631,128 -166,617 

Depreciation Expense 16,915 29,916 -13,001 

Administration Expense 417,074 477,406 -60,333 

Accommodation Expense 34,332 102,100 -67,768 

Other Expense 150,736 200,004 -49,268 

Sales 

The variance is due to a market surplus through Pools 2 to 4 with increased level of market discounting to push volumes through 

the retail chain. The switch to value added yellow volumes has been slower than anticipated. 

Cost of sales 

Shift in volumes away from DME market due to market oversupply thus resulting in lower grower payments. Grower returns         

impacted by higher discounting and a decline in overall product quality due to seasonal growing conditions and continued             

agronomical learnings and experiences of increased yellow-flesh varieties. 
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Interest revenue 

Improved operating cash balances and term deposits earning higher than expected interest rates. 

Other revenue 

Sundry minituber sales and final dividend received on Western Potatoes closure. 

Employee benefits expense 

There were several staff vacancies throughout the year that were either not replaced permanently or there was a lag in the timing of 

their replacement. 

Supplies & services 

Marketing consumption campaign refocussed with reduction in non-core activities of food service and other projects. 

Depreciation expense 

Incorrect depreciation rates used for Budget. 

Administration expense 

Reduced levels of training and travel activity due to several staff absences and vacancies throughout the year. 

Accommodation expense 

Reduced levels of training and travel activity due to several staff absences and vacancies throughout the year. 

Other expense 

Reduced approved adhoc R & D projects and associated spend. 
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Significant variances between  
Actual 2015 and Actual 2014  

 2015 
Actual 

$ 

2014 
Actual 

$ 

Variance 
$ 

Sales 32,485,476 35,566,470 -3,080,994 

Cost of Sales 28,595,314 31,019,014 -2,423,699 

Interest revenue 69,495 81,257 -11,762 

Other revenue 20,953 219,833 -198,880 

Employee benefits expense 1,382,012 1,501,350 -119,339 

Supplies and Services 2,464,511 2,738,311 -273,800 

Depreciation expense 16,915 33,009 -16,094 

Administration expense 417,074 339,219 77,855 

Accommodation expense 34,332 133,708 -99,376 

Other expense 150,736 186,898 -36,162 

Sales 

Revenues decreased primarily due to the market oversupply position and highly price competitive merchant zone. 

Cost of sales 

Volume impact of competitive sales market impacting gross revenue base, with product quality levels down due to seasonal factors 

and market oversupply. 

Interest revenue 

Reduced interest rate market on term deposits and operating cash balances. 
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 Other revenue 

Cessation of Cockburn Rd site storage rental and one-off Food Service income streams in 2014. 

Employee benefits expense 

Staff vacancies temporarily absorbed with existing staff and not backfilled in short term or permanently replaced. 

Supplies and services 

Marketing consumption campaign refocused with reduction in non-core activities of food and other projects. 

Depreciation expense 

One-off accelerated depreciation on buildings in 2014. 

Administration expense 

Full year impact of office lease and several business improvement initiatives commenced in 2015. 

Accommodation expense 

Once-off office relocation expenses in 2014. 

Other expense 

Reduced approved adhoc R&D projects and associated spend. 

 
 



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2014/2015 
97 

Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Note 30: Financial instruments 

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Financial instruments held by the Authority are cash and cash equivalents, restrictive cash, receivables and payables. The Authority 

has limited exposure to financial risks and the overall risk management program focuses on managing the risks identified below. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Authority’s receivables defaulting on their contractual obligations resulting in  

financial loss to the Authority.   

The Authority measures credit risk on a fair value basis and monitors risk on a regular basis. The maximum exposure to credit risk 

at end of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets 

inclusive of any provisions for impairment as shown in the table at note 30(c) ‘Financial instruments disclosures’ and note 16 

‘Receivables’. 

The Authority only trades with recognised, creditworthy third parties and has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and 

services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an on-going 

basis with the result that exposure to bad debts is minimal. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk. 
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Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises when the Authority is unable to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Authority is exposed to        

liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business. The Authority has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows  

by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its commitments. 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Authority’s    

income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Authority does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially  

exposed to other price risks. The Authority has no long term debt therefore is not exposed to risk from changes in interest rates. 

(b)  Categories of financial instruments 

In addition to cash and bank overdraft, the carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial   

liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows: 

 
2015 2014 

  $000 $000 

Financial Assets:   

 Cash and cash equivalents 2,557 2,738 

 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 0 19 

 Loans and receivables 
(a)

 1,351 1,856 

Financial Liabilities:     

           Bank overdraft 0 0 

 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 3,231 3,536 

(a) 
The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).  
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(c) Financial instrument disclosures 

Credit risk  

The following table discloses the Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk, interest rate exposures and the ageing analysis of 

financial assets. The Authority’s maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of        

financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired 

financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the Authority. 

The Authority holds bank guarantees ($1,490,000) as security relating to the financial assets it holds. 

The Authority does not hold any financial assets that had to have their terms renegotiated that would have otherwise resulted in 

them being past due or impaired. 
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Interest rate exposures and aging  analysis of financial assets
 (a) 

 Ageing Analysis of Financial Assets 

 
Financial Assets 

Carrying 
Amount 

Not Past Due and 
Not Impaired 

Up to 1 
month 

1 to 3 
months 

3-12 
months 

1-5  
Years 

More 
than 5 
years 

Impaired 
financial 
assets 

$000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s 

2015         

Cash and cash         
equivalents 

2,557 2,557 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Receivables 
(a)

 1,351 1,554 196 0 0 0 0 0 

Total: 3,908 3,712 196 0 0 0 0 0 

         

2014         

Cash and cash         
equivalents 

2,738 2,738 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents 

19 19 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Receivables 
(a)

 1,856 1,558 299 0 0 0 0 0 

Total: 4,613 4,314 299 0 0 0 0 0 

(a) 
The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).  
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Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities
  

 Interest rate exposure Maturity date 

 
2015 

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 

Carrying 
amount 

Fixed          
interest 

rate 

Variable 
interest 

rate 

Non-
interest 
bearing 

Total 
Nominal 
amount 

Up to 
1 

month 

1 to 3 
months 

3-12 
months 

1-5  
Years 

More 
than 5 
years 

% $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s 

Financial Assets            

Cash and cash        
equivalents 

2.33% 2,557 - 2,557 - 2,557 2,557 - - - - 

Restricted cash and 
cash equivalents 

 0 - - - - - - - - - 

Receivables 
(a)

  1,351 - - 1,351 1,351 1,351 - - - - 

Total:  3,908 0 2,557 1,351 3,908 3,908 0 0 0 0 

            

Financial Liabilities            

Payables   322 - - 322 322 322 - - - - 

Outstanding payments 
to growers 

 2,909 - - 2,909 2,909 2,909 - - - - 

 Total:  3,231 0 0 3,231 3,231 3,231 0 0 0 0 

(a) 
The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).  

Liquidity and interest rate exposure  

The following table details the Authority’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and         

financial liabilities. The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section     

analyses only the carrying amounts of each item. 
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(a) 
The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable).  

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities
  

 Interest rate exposure Maturity date 

 
2014 

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 

Carrying 
amount 

Fixed          
interest 

rate 

Variable 
interest 

rate 

Non-
interest 
bearing 

Total 
Nominal 
amount 

Up to 1 
month 

1 to 3 
months 

3-12 
months 

1-5  
Years 

More 
than 5 
years 

% $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s $000s 

Financial Assets            

Cash and cash        
equivalents 

3.00% 2,738 - 2,738 - 2,738 2,738 - - - - 

Restricted cash and 
cash equivalents 

 19 - 19 - 19 19 - - - - 

Receivables 
(a)

  1,856 - - 1,856 1,856 1,856 - - - - 

Total:  4,613 0 2,756 1,856 4,613 4,613 0 0 0 0 

            

Financial Liabilities            

Payables   434 - - 434 434 434 - - - - 

Outstanding payments 
to growers 

 3,102 - - 3,102 3,102 3,102 - - - - 

 Total:  3,536 0 0 3,536 3,536 3,536 0 0 0 0 
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Interest rate sensitivity analysis 

The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Authority’s financial assets and liabilities at the end of 

the reporting period on the surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates.  It is assumed that the change in    

interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.  

 
 - 100 basis points + 100 basis points 

2015 

Carrying 
amount  

Surplus Equity Surplus Equity 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Financial Assets      

 Cash and cash equivalent 2,557 -26 -26 26 26 

 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 0     

Total Increase/(Decrease) 2,557 -26 -26 26 26 

 
Financial Liabilities 
The PMC does not have any financial liabilities subject to interest rate sensitivity.   
 
  - 100 basis points  + 100 basis points  

2014 
Carrying 
amount 

Surplus Equity Surplus Equity 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Financial Assets      

 Cash and cash equivalent 2,738 -27 -27 27 27 

 Restricted cash and cash equivalents 19     

Total Increase/(Decrease) 2,757 -27 -27 27 27 

Fair values 

All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are 

recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes. 
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Note 31: Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers 

Remuneration of members of the accountable authority 
 
The number of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and  

other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:  

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of members of the accountable  

authority.  

Remuneration Band ($) 2015 2014 

1 - 10,000 4 1 

10,001 - 20,000 2 3 

20,001 - 30,000 2 2 

30,001 - 40,000 1 0 

40,001 - 50,000 0 1 

   

 $ $ 

Base remuneration and superannuation 107,073 124,772 

Annual leave and long service leave accruals 0 0 

Other benefits 22,652 21,687 

The total remuneration of members of the accountable authority  129,725 146,459 



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2014/2015 
105 

Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

Remuneration of senior officers  

The number of senior officers, other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable authority, whose total fees,       

salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits and other benefits for the financial year fall within the following bands are:  

Remuneration Band ($) 2015 2014 

  90,001 - 100,000 1 0 

140,001 - 150,000 0 1 

150,001 - 160,000 0 1 

160,001 - 170,000 1 0 

220,001 - 230,000 1 0 

230,001 - 240,000 0 1 

   

 $ $ 

Base remuneration and superannuation 493,105 515,120 

Annual leave and long service leave accruals -8,489 18,497 

Other benefits 964 132 

The total remuneration of senior officers  485,580 533,749 

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Authority in respect of senior officers other than senior 

officers reported as members of the accountable authority.  

Note 32: Remuneration of auditor 

Remuneration paid or payable in respect of the audit for the current financial year is as follows:  

 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and 
key performance indicators. 

43,400 42,000 

Note 32 refers to fees related to the years reported. It will not reflect the expenditure reported in the expenses.  



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2014/2015 
106 

Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

The Authority consists of a single financial output as reflected in these financial statements. 
 
No further segment reporting is required.  

Note 33: Schedule of income and expenses by service 

Note 34: Related Party disclosure 

In addition to remuneration (note 31), the Authority also makes the following disclosures: 

Herbert Russell (Board Member until 30 April 2015) is a licensed potato grower and has delivered during the 2015 year. Payments 

for his potatoes have been based upon commercial packout gradings and grower payment rates as they apply to all licensed    

growers in the same pools, in the same year. Specific grower payments have always been deemed confidential, therefore the value 

of grower payments made to Herbert Russell are not disclosed. 

By Statute, the Authority is required to deduct from growers an APC fee for service and remit to the APC. Herbert Russell (Board 

Member until 30 April 2015) was a Committee Member of the Agricultural Produce Commission – Potato Producers Committee 

(APC-PPC), a subcommittee of the APC. During the year the Authority deducted from growers $355,699 and paid to the APC 

$350,149. 

Darryl Smith (Board Member) is a licensed potato grower and has delivered during the 2015 year. Payments for his potatoes have 

been based upon commercial packout gradings and grower payment rates as they apply to all licensed growers in the same pools, 

in the same year. Specific grower payments have always been deemed confidential, therefore the value of grower payments made 

to Darryl Smith are not disclosed.  

Gregory Starkie (Board Member) is a licensed potato grower and has delivered during the 2015 year. Payments for his potatoes 

have been based upon commercial packout gradings and grower payment rates as they apply to all licensed growers in the same 

pools, in the same year. Specific grower payments have always been deemed confidential, therefore the value of grower payments 

made to Gregory Starkie are not disclosed. 
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 2015 2014 

  $ $ 

Bad Debts written-off 412 0 

Note 35: Supplementary financial information  

A minor employee debt was written off during 2015. 

(a) Write-offs 
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4.2 Key Performance Indicators 

Certification of Key Performance Indicators 

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

We hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for         

assisting users to assess the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia’s performance, and fairly represent the  

performance of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia for the financial year ended 30 June 2015.  

R Edwards 
Chairman 
11 September 2015 

D Smith 
Board Member 
11 September 2015 

S Boczar 
Chief Financial Officer 
11 September 2015 
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1. Effectiveness Indicators 

The Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia’s primary outcome is outlined in the Marketing of Potatoes Act 1946 and  

further defined by the Ministers’ objectives as “the quantity and variety of (ware) potatoes supplied meets the demand of the State’s 

consumers”. 

Key Performance Indicators have been selected to demonstrate the extent to which the Authority’s outputs achieve the desired   

outcome outlined by the Minister. The Authority has set targets of the indicators, based on industry standards, market trends and 

requirements of the Minister’s objectives. 

Key Performance Indicators 

1.1    The extent to which the Corporation aligned domestic production levels with local (ware market) demand. 

The Authority aims to align domestic production within ± 5% of the local market demand. This indicator allows the Authority to      

ascertain the effectiveness of its supply management. 

 

2015 
% 

2014 
% 

2013 
% 

2012 
% 

Market Demand 100 100 100 100 

DME Production 99.9 97.0 92.2 93.4 

The KPI was achieved. 

Import restrictions into the WA market for the whole year assisted in DME production and in supply chain placement. Pools 2 and 3 

were impacted by a market surplus which impacted market pricing and the ability of the Authority merchants to successfully market 

and deliver WA potatoes throughout the supply chain. Some WA grown volumes were delivered to the East Coast as part of this 

surplus opportunity which enabled the Authority to obtain a minimum recovery for growers as opposed to dumping them at nil      

return. 
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1.2    The extent to which the Corporation provides varieties to the domestic market 

Through its supply management the Authority provides a range of varieties to the domestic market. The target is to provide the 

same or more as the prior year.  

Number of varieties made available to wholesale merchants.  

As potato varieties are seasonal the data provided shows the number of different varieties available each season and the total     

different varieties commercially available within the year. The number shown above reflects sales to wholesale merchants for the 

domestic ware market, however the varieties are not always individually labelled at the retail level.  

Consumer feedback has indicated that varieties produced in limited quantities are not being recognised or made available at the 

point of sale. PMC realises retailers need to receive adequate quantity and quality throughout the year.  

The KPI was achieved in all Pools except Pool 1. 

Year Season 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Jul – Sep                        Winter 19 20 21 17 

Oct – Dec                       Spring 24 24 28 18 

Jan – Mar                       Summer 26 20 22 21 

Apr – Jun                       Autumn 27 24 27 19 
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The KPI was achieved. 

(1)
 “Services Costs” is defined as all administrative and operational overheads incurred in regulating the supply of potatoes in the 

State and administering the Act. 

 
2. Efficiency Indicators 

2.1    Corporation services costs 
(1)

 per tonne of production. 

The Authority’s services costs are also reported as actual dollars per delivered tonne to more accurately reflect the administration 

costs to run the Authority. 2015 experienced a slow down in volume growth which required cost control over all areas of spend to 

ensure growers returns were not adversely impacted. All areas of spend have been tightly managed without any delay or impact on 

maintaining an appropriate level of value-adding service to stakeholders and the supply chain. 

     2015 
 

2015 2014 2013 2012 Budget 

Actual $ $4,465,579 $4,932,494 $2,994,535 $2,605,145 $4,982,659 

Cost $ / T $82.41 $90.22 $54.57 $51.90 $89.66 

Services provided 

Regulation of the potato production in Western Australia for the benefit of the consumer. 
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The KPI was not achieved. 

Surplus market volumes throughout Pools 2 to 4 impacted the cycle and completion of merchant packouts. Higher merchant        

discounting levels were used as the main lever to stimulate the lag in retail demand. This higher level of discounting focus required 

continuous pool performance monitoring and analysis and created a subsequent delay in finalising grower payments. The          

competitive market was a catalyst for some merchant supply and payment delays which also impacted the timing of scheduled 

grower payments. Throughout the year a continual cash focus was in place to deliver the appropriate balance between grower   

payments and merchant collections without any undue liquidity issues. 

2.2    Maintaining 1st payments to growers within acceptable credit terms. 

The Authority aims to make all 1st payments to growers within 14 days of delivery. This indicator is a measure of the Authority’s     

responsiveness to the growers. 

 

 
2015 2014 2013 2012 

Average days lag between delivery and paid.  15.94 11.64 10.13 10.17 
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4.3 Ministerial Directions 

The Corporation received the following Ministerial direction on 27 March 2009: 

To ensure the domestic market is being adequately supplied with potatoes, growers’ returns are being approved in accordance with section 32

(1) of the Act and the public is provided with adequate data, the Corporation is directed under section 20A of the Act to: 

1. Fund an independent study conducted by an appropriate qualified person, to determine the level of return to be paid to growers for each 

 pool which will provide a reasonable opportunity for profit from the economically efficient production of potatoes. The report should be 

 updated annually and a copy of this report is to be made available to my office. The information should be quoted when submitting     

 recommendations under section 32(1) of the Act; 

2. Consult with the Potato Merchants Association when determining the quantity of potatoes to be recommended under Section  26(2) of  

 the Act and provide details of any disagreement between the two organisation’s estimations; and 

3. Provide detailed statistical data in the Corporation’s Annual Report of the performance of each marketing pool. 

In accordance with Section 26(2) of the Act, the Corporation was directed under Section 20A to accept the following quantities of ware potatoes 

during domestic marketing pools: 

14,782 tonnes during Pool 4, 2014-15  

12,117 tonnes during Pool 3, 2014-15  

14,052 tonnes during Pool 2, 2014-15  

14,282 tonnes during Pool 1, 2014-15  

No other ministerial directions were received during the financial year. 
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4.4 Other Financial Disclosures 

There were no capital projects commenced or in construction as at the reporting date. 

 
Capital Works 

Staff Profile 

The Corporation remains committed to ensuring that the talents and resources of employees are utilised to the full and that all     
employees receive fair and equitable treatment. 

 
Employment and Industrial Relations 

 2015 2014 

Full time Permanent 9.0 8.5 

Full time Contract 2.0 2.0 

Part time (FTE basis) 2.2 2.6 

Staff total: 13.2 13.1 
   

Board Members (FTE basis)  1.0 1.0 

Overall total: 14.2 14.1 

Staff Development 

The Corporation has a commitment to the development of its employees.  Our strategy is to build a highly skilled, professional and 

fair workplace with the ability to adapt to changing business technology and environment. Training requirements are identified 

through an employee professional development plan that is based on the outcomes of staff performance evaluation.  

During the year the Corporation spent $6,162 on training and development, with courses being undertaken in the areas of        

Foundations of Board Directorship, Safety and Health Representatives Training and First Aid refresher courses. 
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4.5 Governance Disclosures 

The Corporation of Western Australia requires all Board members, senior officers and employees to declare any interests in existing 

or proposed contracts between the Corporation and firms of which members, senior officers and employees may have a holding, 

share or related interest, whether directly or indirectly.  

At the date of reporting, two Board members have expressed an interest in contracts other than normal contracts of employment of 

service with the Corporation.  

Further disclosure is made in Note 34 to the Financial Statements. 

 
Contracts with Senior Officers 

 
Insurance Premiums Paid to Indemnify Members of the Board 

An insurance policy has been taken out to indemnify members of the Board and senior staff against any liability incurred under  

Sections 13 or 14 of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996.  The amount of the insurance premium paid for 

2014-2015 was $6,085. 

 
Workers Compensation 

No workers compensation claims were lodged for 2014/2015 and no lost time was recorded during the 2014/15 financial year. This 

compares with one claim lodged relating to 2013/2014 which was subsequently denied and rejected post a full investigation.  
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4.6 Other Legal Requirements 

 
Advertising (Electoral Act 1907, S175ZE) 

In compliance with section 175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the Corporation is required to report on expenditure incurred during the 

financial year ended 30 June 2015 in relation to advertising agencies, market research organisations, polling organisations, direct 

mail organisations and media advertising organisations. The expenditure totalled $1,266,192 (ex GST) and comprises the following: 

 2015 

Media Advertising Organisation (Carat Media Services)  734,978 

Advertising Agency (Rare Pty Ltd) 498,494 

Market Research Organisation (Fresh Logic)  32,720 

Total $1,266,192  

 
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (Disability Services Act 1993, S2) 

The Corporation is aware of its obligations under the Disability Services Act 1993 and is committed to providing employment        

opportunities, building access and document availability to all persons including those with disabilities. As a regulatory body,      

however, the Corporation does not provide services or organise events for the general public. Public meeting rooms, work stations, 

communications and bathroom facilities are available on the ground floor of the Corporation’s leased premises. 

 



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2014/2015 
117 

Disclosures and Legal Compliance 

 

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury management performance for 2014/2015. 

Indicator Target 2015 Actual 2015 

Number of fatalities. NIL NIL 

Lost time injury/disease (LTI/D) incidence rate. NIL NIL 

Lost time injury severity rate. NIL NIL 

Percentage of injured workers returned to work within 
(i) 13 weeks and (ii) 26 weeks N/A N/A 

Percentage of managers and supervisors trained in 
occupational safety, health and injury management 
responsibilities. 

100% 100% 
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Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes (Public 

Sector Management Act, 1994, S31(1)) 

1. The Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia has complied with the Public Sector Standards, the Western 
 Australian Public Sector Code of Ethics and the Corporation’s Code of Ethics for staff and Code of Conduct for Board 
 members. 

2. Procedures designed to ensure such compliance have been put in place and appropriate internal assessments conducted 
 to verify that the statement made above is correct. 

3. OPSSC reporting under s31 of the Public Sector Management Act 1994, in 2014-2015 was: 

Compliance Issues Significant Action taken to monitor and ensure compliance 

Public Sector Standards -  
WA Public Sector Code of Ethics. 

 None 

Information on the WA Public Sector Code of Ethics is included in the Induction   
Manuals for staff and Board members and is available to staff on the Corporation’s 
intraweb. 

Corporation’s Code of Ethics for staff and 
Code of Conduct for Board members. 

 None 

Information on the Corporation’s Codes are included the Induction Manuals for staff 
and Board members and is available to staff on the Corporation’s computer network. 
All staff and Board members are required to submit Declaration of Interest forms each 
year.  

Public Interest Disclosure. 

 None 
Information on the requirements of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 are        
included the Induction Manuals for staff and Board members. 
All staff have intraweb access to detailed internal procedures and guidelines on   
lodging disclosures, investigation, reporting and protecting informants.  

Public Sector Standards - Human  
Resource Management. 

 None 

A specialist HR consultant was engaged to provide advice to the Corporation on   
several matters, including recruitment and reclassification of positions. 

Public Sector Standards – Grievance 
Standard. 

 None 

Information on the Corporation’s Grievance Procedures is included in the Staff        
Induction Manual and is available to staff on the Corporation’s intraweb. 
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Record Keeping Plan (State Records Act 2000, S61) 

The Corporation maintains a structured records system for the management of all hard copy and electronic records, as required  
under section 19 of the State Records Act 2000.  
 
The Corporation completed a comprehensive review of its Recordkeeping Plan, following guidelines provided by the State Records 
Office, and submitted this to the State Records Commission in December 2008 in accordance with section 28 of the State Records 
Act 2000. The Corporation undertook to amend the Plan, taking into account the issues identified in the review report, by 30       
September 2009.  The amended Plan was submitted to the State Records Office on 3 September 2009. 
 
The State Records Commission approved the amended Plan on 7 April 2010, which will be required to be reviewed by 7 April 2015 
in accordance with section 28 of Act. The Corporation has completed an initial review of its Record Keeping Plan and a revised 
Record Keeping Plan is due for submission by 26th February 2016. 
 
The State Records Commission separately approved the Corporation’s revised Retention and Disposal Schedule/Authority on 18 
June 2010. 
 
The Staff Induction Manual outlines employees’ roles and responsibilities in regard to their compliance with the Recordkeeping 
Plan.    
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Corruption Prevention 

Information relating to corruption prevention is included in the Corporation’s Staff Induction Manual and is available to staff on the 
Corporation’s computer network. The induction program for staff outlines the risks of corruption and misconduct and the processes 
used to report suspected cases of corruption. 
 
The Code of Conduct for Board members specifies that any information about actual or potentially corrupt or illegal activities must 
be disclosed to the Chairperson or, if necessary, to the Corruption and Crime Commission. The Corporation is committed to         
expanding the scope of its risk management planning to address the risks of corruption and misconduct. 

4.7 Government Policy Requirements 

 
Substantive Equality 

The Corporation is aware of the intent and substance of the Policy Framework for Substantive Equality. It is committed to providing 
its services free from any form of discrimination. 

 
Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management 

The Corporation is committed to providing a safe and healthy working environment for all employees, and to assisting injured      

employees to return to work as soon as medically appropriate. It has complied with the requirements of the: 

 Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984. 

 Code of Practice: Occupational Safety and Health in the Western Australian Public Sector 2007. 

 Workers’ Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981.  

 Workers’ Compensation Code of Practice (Injury Management) 2005. 
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This commitment is delivered through the Corporation’s Occupational Safety and Health Management System, comprising policies, 

plans and procedures relating to: 

 Injury management. 

 Risk management.  

 Asbestos management. 

 Inspector safety. 

 Forklift safety. 

Information on the Corporations’ Occupational Safety and Health Management System is included in the Staff Induction Manual and 

is available on the Corporation’s intraweb. 

Employees are encouraged to inform the Corporation’s Safety and Health Representative about workplace safety and health      

concerns, who reports and makes recommendations to the Chief Executive Officer.  The Chief Executive Officer takes full            

responsibility for ensuring that action is taken to resolve employees’ safety and health concerns. 

As the Corporation has small workforce with management and employees interacting closely on the Corporation’s business on a 

daily basis, an Occupational Safety and Health Committee is considered unnecessary. 
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Certification of Special Purpose Financial Statements 

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

The following pages represent Special Purpose Financial Statements that have been prepared to detail the financial affairs 

of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia in a format that is relevant to growers and the growing pools. 

These reports contain data and extracts from the official Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia Annual Report 

for the year ending June 2015 in addition to other relevant data deemed appropriate for further disclosure. 

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have not been audited. At no time does the Management or the Board 

of the Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia, imply, infer or state these special purpose financial 

statements have been approved or audited by the office of the Auditor General or otherwise authorised persons. 

Growers wishing to review the audited financial statements contained within the official Potato Marketing Corporation of 

Western Australia Annual Report for the year ending June 2015 should refer to the Annual Report for the year ended 30 

June 2015 as disclosed in the prior pages of this document. 

 
S Boczar 
Chief Financial Officer 

Grower Report 
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Grower Report 

Potato Marketing Corporation - Growing Year 2015 

TOTAL

Weighbridge T 61,610 UNIT COST / (REVENUE)

PER GROSS TONNE

POOL AVAILABILITY T 61,610 OVER THE WEIGHBRIDGE

Gross Tonnes Delivered T 54,190

Dumping 2,246

COMMERCIAL PACKOUT T 51,944            

REVENUE

Sales $ 32,485,476 $ 527.28 (A)

COST OF SALES

TOTAL COST of SALES $ (28,595,314) ($ 464.13) (B)

TRADING PROFIT $ 3,890,162

SERVICE EXPENSES

 - Employee $ (1,382,012)

 - Supply & Services $ (2,464,511)

 - Depreciation $ (16,915)

 - Administration                  $ (417,074)

 - Accommodation $ (34,332)

 - Other Expenses $ (150,736)

TOTAL SERVICES $ (4,465,579) ($ 72.48) (C)

OTHER REVENUE

 - Interest Income $ 69,495

 - Other Income $ 20,953

$ 90,448 $ 1.47 (D)

TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 998,390

TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (1,483,357) $ 7.87

Surplus $ (2) -$0.00 (E)
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Grower Report 

Profit and Loss by Licensed Pool 

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

The following page reflects the Income Statement (surplus / deficit) itemised by each licensed Pool and contract           

transactions. The total column can be compared to the Income Statement as shown on page 50 of the Annual Report. 

The purpose of this disclosure is to assist growers in each Pool to see their specific financial revenues, grower payments 

and contributions to the Services costs.  

The information shown on this document highlights the functional flow of the Corporation.  

The hectares licensed, planted and average yields are for information only.  

 Points of Interest 

 The tonnage delivered less dumpings = tonnages available to the Pool for commercial activity. The tonnage             

 commercially packed must equal the Pool Availability.  

 Tonnage delivered does not equal tonnage sold – due to dumpings. 

 Grades paid to Growers does not equal grades sold to Merchants – due to dumpings. 

 Tonnage sold and paid is reported as Gross Tonnes, ie includes soil and waste, unless otherwise stated. Gross 

 tonnes is the only consistent quantity throughout the cycle. Deliveries are based on gross weight over the  

 weighbridge, packouts balance back to the total gross tonnes delivered and growers are paid based on those gross 

 tonnes, albeit soil and waste are paid at nil value. 

 Grower payments = all payments made to Growers including Finals and Incentives. 

Services Cost 

Formally referred to as Corporation costs, is now clearly defined as "all administrative and operational overheads incurred in 

regulating the supply of potatoes in the State and administering the Act".  
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Grower Report 

Profit & Loss by Pool 2015 

Unit 30-Jun-15
1 2 3 4 TOTAL

Hectares Licensed ha 392 330 213 318 1252

Hectares Planted ha 349 303 222 306 1181

Average Ware Yield t/ha 34 44 63 49 46

Gross Tonnes Licensed t 16175 15325 13812 16298 61610

Gross Tonnes Delivered t 11,989           13,252           14,013           14,936           54,190           

Dumping t 78                   537                 1,209              422                 2,246              

POOL AVAILABILITY t 11,911           12,715           12,804           14,514           51,944           

DOMESTIC

 - Washpackers t 11,728           11,190           11,924           13,569           48,411           

 - Other t 184                 1,526              879                 945                 3,533              

COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 11,911           12,715           12,804           14,514           51,944           

REVENUE

 - Local $ 8,628,683      8,545,101      7,259,336      8,052,356      32,485,476    

736                 645                 518                 539                 599                 

COST OF SALES

 - Grower Payments $ 7,037,174      7,786,032      6,198,768      6,599,028      27,621,001    

- Retained grower payments $ 234,520         260,070         235,718         244,005         974,313         

TOTAL $ 7,271,694      8,046,102      6,434,486      6,843,033      28,595,314    

620                 607                 459                 458                 528                 

TRADING PROFIT $ 1,356,990      498,999         824,850         1,209,323      3,890,162      

SERVICE EXPENSES

 - Employee $ 347,891         367,126         316,314         350,681         1,382,012      

 - Supply & Services $ 702,882         576,037         651,549         534,043         2,464,511      

 - Depreciation $ 4,264              4,264              4,171              4,217              16,915           

 - Administration                  $ 140,446         91,632           83,970           101,025         417,074         

 - Accommodation $ 5,532              7,706              10,130           10,965           34,332           

 - Other Expenses $ 23,750           23,750           23,750           79,486           150,736         

TOTAL SERVICES $ 1,224,764      1,070,515      1,089,883      1,080,416      4,465,579      

102                 81                   78                   72                   82                   

OTHER REVENUE

 - Interest Income $ 19,013           19,764           16,211           14,508           69,495           

 - Other Income $ -                  11,755           690                 8,508              20,953           

$ 19,013           31,519           16,901           23,015           90,448           

TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 257,994         270,080         220,471         249,845         998,390         

TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ 106,755-         810,077-         468,604-         97,921-           1,483,357-      

POOL PROFIT $ 0                     0-                     0-                     2-                     2-                     

Description Pool
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Grower Report 

Growing Year 2015 Pools 1- 4 

 
 

Variety    Tonnes %
Ag. Trials 10.7            0.0%
Almera 294.2          0.5%
Banana 16.0            0.0%

Cabaret 27.0            0.0%
Carisma 2,478.3      4.6%
Delaware 507.5          0.9%
Dutch Cream 558.0          1.0%
Harmony 11.6            0.0%
Kestrel 195.7          0.4%
Kipfler 271.9          0.5%
Lady Christl 1,412.3      2.6%
Laura 1,228.0      2.3%
Mac Russett 59.4            0.1%
Maranca 416.7          0.8%
Maris Piper 184.9          0.3%
Marlin 107.5          0.2%
Melody 353.4          0.7%
Mondial 278.9          0.5%
Mozart 7.9              0.0%
Nadine 27,926.0    51.5%
Nicola 284.2          0.5%
Orchestra 187.4          0.3%
Purple Delight 31.8            0.1%
Rodeo 3,378.6      6.2%
Royal Blue 8,419.3      15.5%
Ruby Lou 2,066.7      3.8%
Salad Rose 5.8              0.0%
Senna 82.5            0.2%
SIFRA 73.6            0.1%
Soprano 285.8          0.5%
Virginia Rose 338.8          0.6%
White Star 2,689.8      5.0%

Total 54,190       100%

Varieties Grown During 2015 - Pool 1 to 4

Gradings %
Class 1 39.8%
Class 2 26.9%
Smalls 14.8%
W+S 14.3%
Drybrush 2.1%
Unsaleable Smalls 1.9%
Other 0.2%
Total 100%

Packout Results
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Licenced Delivered
Description Unit Total

Hectares Licensed ha 1252
Hectares Planted ha 1181
Average Ware Yield t/ha 46
Gross Tonnes Licensed t 61,610       

Gross Tonnes Delivered t 54,190
Dumping t 2,246
POOL AVAILABILITY t 51,944
DOMESTIC
 - Washpackers t 48,411
 - Other t 3,533
COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 51,944
REVENUE
 - Local $ 32,485,476
COST OF SALES
 - Grower Payments $ 27,621,001
 - End Point Royalty $ 974,313

Total: $ 28,595,314
TRADING PROFIT $ 3,890,162
SERVICE EXPENSES
 - Employee $ 1,382,012
 - Supply & Services $ 2,464,511
 - Depreciation $ 16,915
 - Administration                  $ 417,074
 - Accommodation $ 34,332
 - R & D $ 150,736

Total: $ 4,465,579
OTHER REVENUE
 - Interest Income $ 69,495
 - Other Income $ 20,953

Total: $ 90,448
TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 998,390
TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (1,483,357)
POOL PROFIT $ (2)

Licenced DME vs Delivered DME by District

District Licenced Delivered
Manjimup 5,010          5,021        
Marybrook / Busselton 11,738       10,491     
Metropolitan 3,930          3,465        
Myalup 17,643       12,463     
Pemberton 17,240       17,162     
Gingin / Lancelin 6,049          5,588        
Total 61,610       54,190     

Blue
16%

Red
13%

White
59%

Yellow
12%

Volume Mix By Colour %

Class 1
40%

Class 2
27%

Smalls
15%

W+S
14%

Packout Grading %
(excl Dry Brush / Unsaleable Smalls / Other)
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Grower Report 

Growing year 2015 - Pool 1 

Gradings %
Class 1 48.0%

Class 2 23.3%
Smalls 15.8%
Waste & Soil 10.9%
Dry Brush 0.7%
Unsaleable Smalls 1.3%
Total 100%

Packout Results

Description Unit Pool Total

Hectares Licensed ha 392              
Hectares Planted ha 349              
Average Ware Yield t/ha 34                 
Gross Tonnes Licensed t 16,175         

Gross Tonnes Delivered t 11,989
Dumping t 78
POOL AVAILABILITY t 11,911
DOMESTIC
 - Washpackers t 11,728
 - Other t 184
COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 11,911         
REVENUE
 - Local $ 8,628,683
COST OF SALES
 - Grower Payments $ 7,037,174
 - End Point Royalty $ 234,520

Total: $ 7,271,694
TRADING PROFIT $ 1,356,990
SERVICE EXPENSES
 - Employee $ 347,891
 - Supply & Services $ 702,882
 - Depreciation $ 4,264

 - Administration                  $ 140,446

 - Accommodation $ 5,532
 - R & D $ 23,750

Total: $ 1,224,764
OTHER REVENUE
 - Interest Income $ 19,013
 - Other Income $ 0

Total: $ 19,013

TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 257,994

TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (106,755)
POOL PROFIT $ 0

Licenced DME vs Delivered DME by District

District Licenced Delivered
Gingin / Lancelin 4,113       3,662        
Marybrook / Busselton 1,329       1,239        
Metropolitan 1,033       740           
Myalup 9,700       6,348        
Total 16,175     11,989     
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Variety    Tonnes %
Almera 7.2 0.1%
Carisma 436.9 3.6%
Delaware 254.7 2.1%

Dutch Cream 316.4 2.6%
Kipfler 30.5 0.3%
Lady Christl 483.0 4.0%
Maris Piper 120.7 1.0%
Melody 37.2 0.3%
Mondial 41.1 0.3%
Mozart 0.8 0.0%
Nadine 5695.2 47.5%
Nicola 93.2 0.8%
Orchestra 0.5 0.0%
Rodeo 463.9 3.9%
Royal Blue 2211.3 18.4%
Ruby Lou 751.0 6.3%
Senna 1.4 0.0%
SIFRA 15.5 0.1%
White Star 1029.0 8.6%
Total 11,989     100.0%

Varieties Grown During 2015 - Pool 1
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Grower Report 

Payments to Growers - Pool 1 

First Interim Second Final 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13

(1st Pmt incl Deliv Incent) Pmt Pmt Pmt Pmt Total

POOL-01 $ $ $ $ $ $ $

WHITES 1.07%

Class-1 620 206 143 10 978 974 1,043

Class-2 222 87 51 4 365 392 372

Small 406 129 94 6 634 674 692

Dry Brush 345 80 80 5 509 577 590

YELLOWS

Class-1 716 214 162 11 1,103 1,034 1,090

Class-2 223 76 51 4 354 400 390

Small 407 120 93 6 626 690 690

Dry Brush 345 80 79 5 510 591 0

REDS

Class-1 689 205 159 11 1,064 1,099 1,010

Class-2 218 78 50 3 350 394 333

Small 68 44 16 1 128 313 240

Dry Brush 399 92 92 6 589 647 690

BLUES

Class-1 800 234 185 12 1,231 1,295 1,350

Class-2 211 78 49 3 341 386 380

Small 64 41 15 1 121 110 380

Dry Brush 417 96 96 6 616 722 725

POOL AVERAGE PAID / T 642 609 720

(Based on PAID Tonnes) PRIOR YEARS ====>>
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Grower Report 

Growing year 2015 - Pool 2 

Gradings %
Class 1 43.2%
Class 2 26.6%
Smalls 15.2%
Waste & Soil 10.4%
Drybrush 2.3%
Unsaleable Smalls 1.4%
Other 0.8%
Total 100%

Packout Results

Description Unit Pool Total

Hectares Licensed ha 330            
Hectares Planted ha 303            
Average Ware Yield t/ha 44              
Gross Tonnes Licensed t 15,325       

Gross Tonnes Delivered t 13,252
Dumping t 537
POOL AVAILABILITY t 12,715
DOMESTIC
 - Washpackers t 11,190
 - Other t 1,526
COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 12,715       
REVENUE
 - Local $ 8,545,101
COST OF SALES
 - Grower Payments $ 7,786,032
 - End Point Royalty $ 260,070

Total: $ 8,046,102
TRADING PROFIT $ 498,999
SERVICE EXPENSES
 - Employee $ 367,126
 - Supply & Services $ 576,037
 - Depreciation $ 4,264
 - Administration                  $ 91,632
 - Accommodation $ 7,706
 - R & D $ 23,750

Total: $ 1,070,515
OTHER REVENUE

 - Interest Income $ 19,764

 - Other Income $ 11,755
Total: $ 31,519

TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 270,080
TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (810,077)
POOL PROFIT $ (0)

Licenced DME vs Delivered DME by District

District Licenced Delivered
Gingin / Lancelin 1,936          1,926        
Marybrook / Busselton 4,650          4,494        
Metropolitan 2,845          2,681        
Myalup 5,894          4,151        

Total 15,325        13,252     

Variety    Tonnes %
Almera 96.7            0.7%
Carisma 703.5          5.3%
Delaware 113.2          0.9%

Dutch Cream 149.3          1.1%
Kestrel 59.9            0.5%
Kipfler 99.5            0.8%
Lady Christl 476.3          3.6%
Laura 85.9            0.6%
Maranca 27.2            0.2%
Maris Piper 64.1            0.5%
Melody 33.1            0.2%
Mondial 237.8          1.8%
Nadine 5,397.8      40.7%
Nicola 57.1            0.4%
Orchestra 7.9              0.1%
Purple Delight 31.1            0.2%
Rodeo 753.1          5.7%
Royal Blue 2,189.6      16.5%
Ruby Lou 855.8          6.5%
Senna 5.5              0.0%
SIFRA 13.7            0.1%
Soprano 149.7          1.1%
Virginia Rose 47.4            0.4%
White Star 1,597.2      12.1%
Total 13,252        100.0%

Varieties Grown During 2015 - Pool 2

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

Gingin / Lancelin Marybrook /
Busselton

Metropolitan Myalup

T

o

n

n

a

g

e

s

Licensed DME V Delivered DME

Licenced Delivered

Blue

17%

Red

13%

White

56%

Yellow

14%

Volume Mix By Colour %

Class 1 

43%

Class 2

27%

Smalls

15%

W+S

10%

Packout Grading %
(excl Dry Brush / Unsaleable Smalls / Other)



 

Potato Marketing Corporation | Annual Report 2014/2015 
132 

Grower Report 

Payments to Growers - Pool 2 

First Interim Second Final 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13

(1st Pmt incl Deliv Incent) Pmt Pmt Pmt Pmt Total

POOL-02 $ $ $ $ $ $ $

WHITES 0.96%

Class-1 619 148 143 8 918 987 978

Class-2 253 61 58 3 376 376 413

Small 406 97 94 5 601 660 694

Dry Brush 344 79 79 5 508 575 602

YELLOWS

Class-1 715 169 165 9 1,059 1,023 847

Class-2 252 60 58 3 373 371 415

Small 405 97 93 5 601 655 704

Dry Brush 344 79 79 5 507 592 602

REDS     

Class-1 687 164 158 9 1,018 1,096 1,037

Class-2 218 53 50 3 324 372 392

Small 67 17 15 1 101 225 207

Dry Brush 398 92 92 5 587 661 516

BLUES

Class-1 800 190 185 11 1,185 1,255 1,269

Class-2 211 53 49 3 316 356 381

Small 64 18 15 1 98 138 219

Dry Brush 417 96 96 6 615 763 742

POOL AVERAGE PAID / T 608 648 651

(Based on PAID Tonnes) PRIOR YEARS ====>>
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Grower Report 

Growing year 2015 - Pool 3 

Gradings %
Class 1 35.3%
Class 2 30.3%
Smalls 13.9%
W+S 15.4%
Drybrush 3.2%
Unsaleable Smalls 1.9%
Total 100%

Packout Results

Description Unit Total

Hectares Licensed ha 213
Hectares Planted ha 222
Average Ware Yield t/ha 63
Gross Tonnes Licensed t 13,812   

Gross Tonnes Delivered t 14,013
Dumping t 1,209
POOL AVAILABILITY t 12,804
DOMESTIC
 - Washpackers t 11,924
 - Other t 879
COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 12,804
REVENUE
 - Local $ 7,259,336
COST OF SALES
 - Grower Payments $ 6,198,768
 - End Point Royalty $ 235,718

Total: $ 6,434,486
TRADING PROFIT $ 824,850
SERVICE EXPENSES
 - Employee $ 316,314
 - Supply & Services $ 651,549
 - Depreciation $ 4,171
 - Administration                  $ 83,970
 - Accommodation $ 10,130
 - R & D $ 23,750

Total: $ 1,089,883
OTHER REVENUE
 - Interest Income $ 16,211
 - Other Income $ 690

Total: $ 16,901

TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 220,471

TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (468,604)
POOL PROFIT $ (0)

Licenced DME vs Delivered DME by District

District Licenced Delivered
Manjimup 4,053          4,136          

Marybrook / Busselton 683             663             
Metropolitan 52               43               
Pemberton 9,024          9,171          
Total 13,812       14,013       

Variety    Tonnes %
Almera 67.0            0.5%
Banana 16.0            0.1%
Cabaret 14.9            0.1%

Carisma 554.3          4.0%
Delaware 137.6          1.0%
Dutch Cream 18.0            0.1%
Kestrel 78.2            0.6%
Kipfler 79.2            0.6%
Lady Christl 281.4          2.0%
Laura 616.5          4.4%
Mac Russett 30.6            0.2%
Maranca 15.9            0.1%
Marlin 47.7            0.3%
Melody 128.1          0.9%
Mozart 7.1              0.1%
Nadine 8,210.6      58.6%
Nicola 71.5            0.5%
Orchestra 168.2          1.2%
Rodeo 883.3          6.3%
Royal Blue 2,034.9      14.5%
Ruby Lou 166.6          1.2%
Salad Rose 4.4              0.0%
Senna 62.1            0.4%
SIFRA 12.4            0.1%
Soprano 38.2            0.3%
Virginia Rose 204.3          1.5%
White Star 63.7            0.5%
Total 14,013       100%

Varieties Grown During 2015 - Pool 3
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Grower Report 

Payments to Growers - Pool 3 

First Interim Second Final 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13

(1st Pmt incl Deliv Incent) Pmt Pmt Pmt Pmt Total

POOL-03 $ $ $ $ $ $ $

WHITES  6.26%

Class-1 611 106 106 54 877 966 923

Class-2 273 0 0 18 291 367 372

Small 396 81 81 37 596 644 680

Dry Brush 334 67 67 31 500 552 565

YELLOWS   

Class-1 703 127 127 63 1,022 1,014 1,043

Class-2 270 0 0 18 288 368 391

Small 393 81 81 37 591 645 700

Dry Brush 397 82 82 37 597 553 599

REDS    

Class-1 675 146 146 64 1,030 1,075 1,073

Class-2 205 37 37 19 299 363 410

Small 55 3 3 4 64 143 458

Dry Brush 386 79 79 36 580 637 403

BLUES

Class-1 788 172 172 75 1,206 1,234 1,350

Class-2 199 36 36 18 288 349 327

Small 51 2 2 4 59 133 265

Dry Brush 405 83 83 38 609 659 555

POOL AVERAGE PAID / T 502 570 538

(Based on PAID Tonnes) PRIOR YEARS ====>>
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Growing Year 2015 - Pool 4 

Description Unit Total

Hectares Licensed ha 318
Hectares Planted ha 306
Average Ware Yield t/ha 49
Gross Tonnes Licensed t 16,298   

Gross Tonnes Delivered t 14,936
Dumping t 422
POOL AVAILABILITY t 14,514
DOMESTIC
 - Washpackers t 13,569
 - Other t 945
COMMERCIAL PACKOUT t 14,514
REVENUE
 - Local $ 8,052,356
COST OF SALES
 - Grower Payments $ 6,599,028
 - End Point Royalty $ 244,005

Total: $ 6,843,033
TRADING PROFIT $ 1,209,323
SERVICE EXPENSES
 - Employee $ 350,681
 - Supply & Services $ 534,043
 - Depreciation $ 4,217
 - Administration                  $ 101,025
 - Accommodation $ 10,965
 - R & D $ 79,486

Total: $ 1,080,416
OTHER REVENUE
 - Interest Income $ 14,508
 - Other Income $ 8,508

Total: $ 23,015

TRANSFER TO RESERVE $ 249,845

TRANSFER FROM RESERVE $ (97,921)
POOL PROFIT $ (2)

Licenced DME vs Delivered DME by District

District Licenced Delivered
Manjimup 957             885           

Marybrook / Busselton 5,076          4,095        
Metropolitan / Myalup 2,049          1,965        
Pemberton 8,216          7,991        
Total 16,298       14,936     

Variety    Tonnes %
Ag. Trials 10.7 0.1%
Almera 123.2 0.8%
Cabaret 12.1 0.1%

Carisma 783.6 5.2%
Delaware 2.0 0.0%
Dutch Cream 74.4 0.5%
Harmony 11.6 0.1%
Kestrel 57.6 0.4%
Kipfler 62.6 0.4%
Lady Christl 171.6 1.1%
Laura 525.6 3.5%
Mac Russett 28.8 0.2%
Maranca 373.6 2.5%
Marlin 59.7 0.4%
Melody 155.1 1.0%
Nadine 8622.5 57.7%
Nicola 62.3 0.4%
Orchestra 10.8 0.1%
Purple Delight 0.7 0.0%
Rodeo 1278.3 8.6%
Royal Blue 1983.5 13.3%
Ruby Lou 293.4 2.0%
Salad Rose 1.4 0.0%
Senna 13.5 0.1%
SIFRA 32.0 0.2%
Soprano 97.9 0.7%
Virginia Rose 87.0 0.6%
Total 14,936       100%

Varieties Grown During 2015 - Pool 4
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Gradings %
Class 1 34.0%
Class 2 27.2%
Smalls 14.5%
W+S 19.6%
Drybrush 1.9%
Unsaleable Smalls 2.7%
Total 100%

Packout Results
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Grower Report 

Payments to Growers - Pool 4 

First Interim Second Final 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13

(1st Pmt incl Deliv Incent) Pmt Pmt Pmt Pmt Total

POOL-04 $ $ $ $ $ $ $

WHITES   6.40%

Class-1 591 136 136 58 922 974 1,043

Class-2 150 35 35 15 234 392 372

Small 377 87 87 37 587 674 692

Dry Brush 315 73 73 31 492 577 590

YELLOWS  

Class-1 685 158 158 67 1,069 1,034 1090

Class-2 148 34 34 15 231 400 390

Small 375 86 86 37 584 690 690

Dry Brush 378 87 87 37 590 591 0

REDS    

Class-1 663 153 153 65 1,034 1,099 1,010

Class-2 189 44 44 19 295 394 333

Small 29 7 7 3 46 313 240

Dry Brush 371 86 86 37 579 647 690

BLUES

Class-1 769 178 178 76 1,200 1,295 1,350

Class-2 180 42 42 18 281 386 380

Small 25 6 6 2 39 110 380

Dry Brush 386 89 89 38 603 722 725

POOL AVERAGE PAID / T 489 567 556

(Based on PAID Tonnes) PRIOR YEARS ====>>


